
            
 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 

Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Billy Bain                   Councilman Bob Best 
Councilwoman Roslyn Buckner           Councilman Jaime Petralanda 
 
Decorum: “Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the City Council, shall be barred 
from further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the 
majority vote of the City Council members present.  In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, 
personal attacks and comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments from the podium.” 
 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, February 8, 2016 – 7:00 p.m. 

City Hall, Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
 
2. Invocation: Councilwoman Petralanda 
 

Salute to the Flag: Students from AIE will lead the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance 
and Salute to the Flag  
 
3. Awards & Presentations:  
 
 A) Presentation of Certificate of Recognition to Fred Deno for reporting a house fire 
 
 B) Presentation by Alberni, Caballero and Fierman a) Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report (CAFR) for Fiscal Year ending September 30, 2015 and b) Communications 
with those charged with governance report  
 
 C) Presentation by Lee Zell for National League of Cities for Service Line Warranty 
Program 
  
4. Open Forum: Persons wishing to speak on items of general city business, please sign the 
register located on the speaker's stand before the meeting begins. 

 
5. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) January 25, 2016 – Regular Meeting  

 
6. Reports from Boards & Commissions: None. 
 
7. Public Hearings:  None. 
    
8. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted) 
   

A) Approval of the City Attorney’s Invoice for January 2016 in the Amount of $13,398.75 
  
 



9. Old Business:  
 

A) Appointments to Advisory Boards by the Mayor and Council Members 
 
B) Request that Council consider restrictions on impervious coverings/surfaces in rear 

yard areas of residential homesites 
 

10. New Business:    
  
 A) Ordinance – First Reading – An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Miami Springs Enacting New Code Of Ordinance Section 11-06, Collection Of Election 
Nomination Petition Signatures; Repealing All Ordinances Or Parts Of Ordinances In Conflict; 
Effective Date 
 
 B) Ordinance – First Reading – An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Miami Springs Amending Code Of Ordinance Section 34-17, Employee Disciplinary Action; By 
Adding Thereto A Supplementary Provision Governing The Carrying Of Weapons And Firearms 
While On Duty With The City; Repealing All Ordinances Or Parts Of Ordinances In Conflict; 
Effective Date 
 
 C)  Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs 
Providing For The Second Budget Amendment To The FY 2015-2016 Budget;  By Increasing 
The General Fund Budget To Record Various Transfers Of Funds And The Receipt Of Grant 
Funding By The City;  Providing Intent; Specifying Compliance With Budgetary Processes And 
Procedures; Effective Date  
 
 D) Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs 
Approving And Accepting The Local Agency Program Agreement Between The State Of Florida 
Department Of Transportation And The City; Authorizing The Execution Of The Agreement By 
The Proper Officers And Officials Of The City; Effective Date 
 
 E) Fund Balance Designations for 2016 
 
 F) Request from Tom Curtis, River Cities Festival Organizer, to Sell Alcoholic 
Beverages on City Property for the River Cities Festival on April 15,16 and 17, 2016 
 
 G) Request from City Planner for Council’s consideration to amend the Floor Area 
Ratio to 3.0 in the Neighborhood Business District (NBD) and Central Business District (CBD) of 
the City 
  
11. Other Business:  
 
 A) First Quarter 2016 Interim Budget Report  
 
12. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 
B) City Manager 
 
C) City Council 



 
13. Adjourn 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please visit www.miamisprings-fl.gov for current meeting schedule or follow us on             Twitter @MIAMISPRINGSFL 
******************************************************************************************************* 
Live streaming video of this meeting is available at http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/webcast. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

Anyone wishing to obtain a copy of an agenda item may contact the City Clerk at (305) 805-5006, download the complete agenda packet from 
www.miamisprings-fl.gov or view the materials at City Hall during regular business hours. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
Pursuant to Florida Statute 286.0114, the City Council provides the public with a reasonable opportunity to be heard on all matters. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
If any person decides to appeal any decision of this Board with respect to any matter considered, s/he will need a record of the proceedings and for such 

purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is made (F. S. 286.0105), all of which the City does not provide. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate in this proceeding should contact the 

City Clerk, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 33166.  Telephone: (305) 805-5006, no later than seven (7) days prior to the proceeding. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

Pursuant to Sec. 2-11.1 (S) of the Miami-Dade County Code and Miami Springs Code of Ordinances Chapter 33 - §33-20, all persons, firms or 
corporations employed or retained by a principal who seeks to encourage the passage, defeat, or modifications of (1) ordinance, resolution, action or 

decision of the City Council; (2) any action, decision, recommendation of any City Board or Committee; or (3) any action, decision or recommendation of 
City personnel during the time period of the entire decision-making process on such action, decision or recommendation which will be heard or reviewed 
by the City Council, or a City Board or Committee shall register with the City before engaging in any lobbying activities on forms prepared for this purpose 

and shall state under oath his or her name, business address, the name and business address of each person or entity which has employed said 
registrant to lobby, and the specific issue on which he or she has been employed to lobby.  A copy of the lobbyist registration form is available from the 

Office of the City Clerk. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/
http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/webcast
http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/


City of  
Miami Springs  

          Florida 

Comprehensive  
    Annual Financial  

  Report 
     For the Year Ended  

    September 30, 2015 

“Ripples” (detail) Art in Public Places ceramic wall mural by 

Pavlina and Alfredo Alea selected for new Aquatic Center 



CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

 
 

   Page 
    
I. INTRODUCTORY SECTION   
    
 Letter of Transmittal  i 
 GFOA Certificate of Achievement  vi 
 Organizational Chart  vii 
 List of Elected and Appointed Officials  viii 
    
II. FINANCIAL SECTION   
    
 Independent Auditors’ Report  1-2 
 Management’s Discussion and Analysis  3-19 
 Basic Financial Statements:   
  Government-Wide Financial Statements:  
    Statement of Net Position 20 
    Statement of Activities 21 
  Fund Financial Statements:  
    Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds 22 
    Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position-Governmental Funds 23 
    Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -   
      Governmental Funds 24 
    Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund  
      Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 25 
    Statement of Net Position – Proprietary Funds 26 
    Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position –   
      Proprietary Fund Types 27 
    Statement of Cash Flows – Proprietary Fund Types 28 
  Notes to Basic Financial Statements 29-62 

 Required Supplementary Information (other than MD&A):   
  Budgetary Comparison Schedules:  
    General Fund 63-64 
    Debt Service Fund 65 
  Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules 66 
       Combining Financial Statements:    
  Combining Balance Sheet – Non-major Governmental Funds 67 
  Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance –   
    Non-major Governmental Funds 68 
  Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances-Budget and Actual-  
    Non-major Governmental Funds  69-71 
 
 



CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

 
 

III. STATISTICAL SECTION  Page 
    
  Net Position by Component 72 
  Changes in Net Position 73 
  General Governmental Revenues by Source 74 
  Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 75 
  Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 76 
  Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 77 
  Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt 78 
  Principal Tax Payers 79 
  Property Tax Levies and Collections 80 
  Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 81 
  Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 82 
  Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 83 
  Legal Debt Margin Information 84 
  Pledged Revenue Bond Coverage 85 
  Demographic and Economic Statistics 86 
     Principal Employers  87 
     Full Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function  88 
     Operating Indicators by Function  89 
     Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program  90 
    
IV. COMPLIANCE SECTION   
    
 Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance   
   and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in    
   Accordance with Government Auditing Standards  91-92 
    
 Management Letter Required By Section 10.550 of the Rules   
   of the Auditor General of the State of Florida  93-94 

          Independent Accountants’ Report on Compliance with the Requirements of Section 218.415 
  Florida Statutes in Accordance with Chapter 10.580, Rules of the Auditor General of the     
  State of Florida 

  
 
   95 

    
 



 

 
 

INTRODUCTORY SECTION 
 
 



 

 
 

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL 
 
 















vii 
 

Human Resources 
& Risk Management 

Loretta Boucher 
 Director  

Administration

Mayor and Council
Zavier Garcia 

Bob Best, Billy Bain 
 Roslyn Buckner 
Jaime Petralanda 

City Manager
Ronald K. Gorland 

Asst. City 
Manager/Finance 

Director 
William Alonso 

Police 
 Chief Armando 

Guzman 
 

City Attorney
Jan Seiden 

City Clerk
Erika Santamaria-

Gonzalez 

Recreation 
Omar Luna 

Director 

Elderly 
Services 

Karen Rosson 
Director 

Professional 
Services 
Division 

Tammy Romero 

Golf &
Country Club

Paul O’Dell 
Director

 

Information 
Technology 

Jorge Fonseca
Director

Building & 
Code  

U. Fernandez 
Director

Planning & 
Zoning 

Chris Heid 
City Planner

Patrol 

Investigations 

Communications/
Records

CPO 

Aquatics 

Maintenance 

Building Official

Code 
Compliance

Streets

Building
Maintenance 

Sanitation 

Public Properties 

Public Works
Tom Nash 

Director 

Alicia Gonzalez 
Comptroller Administration

Fleet Maintenance

Grants 
Procurement 

Marketing 
Public 

Information 

Stormwater 

Roads and 
Transportation 

Programs 

Sports Division Golf Course 
Maintenance 
Laurie Bland
Superintendent

c 

 

City of Miami Springs Organizational Chart 
2015 - 2016



 

MIAMI SPRINGS CITY OFFICIALS 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

Mayor: Zavier Garcia 
 

Councilwoman: Roslyn Buckner 
 

Councilman: Jaime Petralanda 
 

Councilman: Bob Best 
 

Councilman: Billy Bain 
 

 
CITY MANAGER 

 
Ron Gorland 

 
 

CITY ATTORNEY  
 

Jan K. Seiden  
 
 

CITY CLERK  
 

Erika Gonzalez Santamaria  
 
 

ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER/FINANCE DIRECTOR 
 

William Alonso CPA, CGFO 
 
 

EXTERNAL AUDITORS 
 

Alberni, Caballero & Fierman, LLP 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

viii 



 

 

 
 

FINANCIAL SECTION 
 
 



 
 

1 

ACCOUNTANTS   ADVISORS�

 
 
Alberni Caballero & Fierman, LLP 
4649 Ponce de Leon Blvd 
Suite 404 
Coral Gables, FL 33146 
T: 305.662.7272 F: 305.662.4266 

  ACF-CPA.COM 
 

 
  

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

 
 
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Miami Springs, Florida  
 
 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Miami Springs, Florida 
(the “City”) as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of September 30, 2015, and the respective changes in 
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

  

 



 
 

2 

 

Emphasis of a Matter 

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions; an amendment to GASB 
Statement No. 27  as of October 1, 2014. As further discussed in Note 1, the opening net position has been 
restated due to the implementation of this new standard.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to this 
matter.   

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3-19 and 63-66 be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor 
fund financial statements, budgetary comparison schedules and statistical section, are presented for purposes 
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and budgetary comparison schedules are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and budgetary comparison schedules 
are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 31, 2016, 
on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

Alberni Caballero & Fierman, LLP 
Alberni Caballero & Fierman, LLP 
Coral Gables, Florida 
January 31, 2016 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(MD&A) 

 
 



 3

 MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
As the management of the City of Miami Springs, we offer readers of the City’s financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the 
fiscal year which ended on September 30, 2015.  Readers are encouraged to consider the 
information presented here in conjunction with additional information that is furnished in the 
letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages i to v of this report.  
 
This discussion and analysis is designed to (a) assist the reader in focusing on significant 
financial issues; (b) provide an overview of the City’s financial activity; (c) identify changes in 
the City’s financial position (its ability to address the next and subsequent year challenges); (d) 
identify any material deviations from the financial plan (the approved budget); and (e) identify 
individual fund issues or concerns.  The information contained within this section should be 
considered only a part of a greater whole.   
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

• The assets and deferred outflows of the City of Miami Springs exceeded its liabilities 
and deferred inflows at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $22 million (net 
position). Unrestricted net position was a deficit of $2.1 million compared to a $2.2 
million net position at the end of FY2014. The decrease in unrestricted net position was 
due to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Pensions; an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. Under this 
Statement, the City was required to record the net pension liability in the government 
wide financial statements for the current year as well as restating the net position as of 
September 30, 2014. 

 
• The City’s total net position increased by $535,418 from $21,440,022 in FY2014 to 

$21,979,440 in FY2015. The increase is attributable to the overall decrease of 
$475,154 from the City’s business-type activities, coupled with an increase of 
$1,010,572 in net position of the governmental activities.   

 
• During the year, the City had expenses that were $4,209,888 higher than the $16.2 

million generated in tax and other revenues for governmental funds.  
 

• The business type activities for the City recognized an operating loss before non-
operating revenues, expenses, and transfers of $470,465.  

 
• Total cost of all of the City’s programs decreased by approximately $800,000 or 6.5% 

with no new programs added this year. The decrease was due to decreases in payroll 
and operating costs for the current year. 

 
• The General Fund’s fund balance increased by $127,395 for the fiscal year ended 

September 30, 2015; this increase was a result of departmental savings during the 
year due to unfilled vacant positions and other lower than budgeted cost savings. 

 
• At the end of the current fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance for the General Fund 

was approximately $3.5 million, or approximately 25% of total general fund 
expenditures.  The committed fund balance was $661,148 which represents future 
costs related to parks and recreation, citywide infrastructure improvements and 
hurricane contingency. 

 
 
 



 4

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED) 
 
• The City’s total debt increased by approximately $4.8 million or 80% (net of principal 

payments on existing debt). This increase was due primarily to the $5.6 million note 
issued for the aquatic facility project. 
 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This annual report consists of four parts—management’s discussion and analysis (this 
section), the basic financial statements, required supplementary information and an additional 
section that presents combining statements for nonmajor governmental funds. The basic 
financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the City: 
 

• The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both 
long-term and short-term information about the City’s overall financial status. 

 
• The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts 

of the City government, reporting the City’s operations in more detail than the 
government-wide statements. 

 
• The governmental funds statements show how general government services such as 

public safety were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future 
spending. 

 
• Proprietary funds statements offer short-term and long-term financial information about 

the activities the government operates like businesses, such as the stormwater utility 
and solid waste system. 

 
The financial statements also include notes that 
explain some of the information in the financial 
statements and provide more detailed data.  The 
statements are followed by a section of required 
supplementary information which further 
explains and supports the information in the 
financial statements.  Figure A-1 shows how the 
required parts of this annual report are arranged 
and are related to one another.  In addition to 
these required elements, we have included a 
section with combining statements that provide 
details about our nonmajor governmental funds, 
each of which is added together and presented 
in single columns in the basic financial 
statements. 
 
Government-wide financial statements. The 
government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide readers with a broad 
overview of the City of Miami Springs’ finances, 
in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 
The statement of net position presents 
information on all of the City’s assets and 
deferred outflows and liabilities and deferred 
inflows, with the difference between the two 
reported as net position. 



 5

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
 
Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether 
the financial position of the City of Miami Springs is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will 
only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused 
vacation leave). 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from 
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through 
user fees and charges (business-type activities).  The government activities of the City of 
Miami Springs include public works, parks and recreation, police, and general administration 
services.  The business-type activities of City include the solid waste system and stormwater 
utility. 
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 20 to 21 of this report. 
 
Fund financial statements.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The City of 
Miami Springs, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All of the funds of the City of 
Miami Springs can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 
 
Governmental funds.  Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same 
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial 
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on 
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may 
be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. 
  
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide 
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds 
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial 
statements.  By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the City’s 
near-term financing decisions.  Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the 
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances 
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and 
governmental activities. 
 
The City of Miami Springs maintains several individual governmental funds.  Information is 
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, the 
Debt Service Fund, and the Capital Projects Fund, which are considered to be major funds.  
Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.  
Individual fund data for each of the nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of 
combining statements elsewhere in this report.   
 
 
 



 6

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
 
Budgetary comparison statements have been provided for the General Fund and all other 
major special revenue funds to demonstrate compliance with the budget.  The basic 
governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 22 to 25 of this report. 
 
Proprietary funds.  The City maintains one type of proprietary fund.  Enterprise funds are 
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements.  The City uses enterprise funds to account for its sanitation and 
stormwater utility operations.   
 
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail.  The proprietary funds financial statements provide separate 
information for the solid waste and stormwater utility operations, all of which are considered to 
be major funds of the City. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on 
pages 26 to 28 of this report. 
 
Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to 
a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  
The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 29 to 62 of this report. 
 
Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this 
report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City’s progress 
in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees.  
 
Required supplementary information can be found on pages 63 to 66 of this report. 
 
The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds is 
presented immediately following the required supplementary information.  Combining and 
individual fund statements and schedules can be found beginning on page 67 of this report. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
 
Summary of Net position.  As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful 
indicator of a government’s financial position.  There are six basic transactions that will affect 
the comparability of the Statement of Net Position summary presentation as reflected below: 
 

1) Net results of activities will impact (increase/decrease) current assets and 
unrestricted net position. 

2) Borrowing for capital will increase current assets and long-term debt. 
3) Spending borrowed proceeds on new capital will reduce current assets and 

increase capital assets.  There is a second impact, an increase in investment in capital 
assets and an increase in related net debt which will not change the net investment in 
capital assets. 

4) Spending of non-borrowed current assets on new capital will reduce current 
assets and increase capital assets and will reduce unrestricted net position and 
increase net investment in capital assets. 

5) Principal payment on debt will reduce current assets and reduce long-term debt and 
reduce unrestricted net position and increase net investment in capital assets in capital 
assets. 

6) Reduction of capital assets through depreciation will reduce capital assets, and net 
investment in capital assets. 

 
The City’s combined net position decreased by 17.4% between fiscal years 2014 and 2015 
(see Table 1). 



 7

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
 
Governmental Activities 
 
The Net Position for the City’s governmental activities increased by $1,010,572 or 5.5% to 
$19.5 million which is attributable to current year operations. The largest portion of the City’s 
governmental net position, $16.6 million or 85%, is restricted as to the purpose they can be 
used for and are classified as net investment in capital assets (land, buildings, streets, 
sidewalks, and equipment).  The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens, 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  Although the City’s 
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the 
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital 
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.  
 
An additional portion of the City’s governmental net position ($4.5 million or 23%) represents 
resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.  The remaining 
balance of unrestricted net position is a deficit of $1.6 million. 

 
Table 1 

City of Miami Springs’ Net Position 
(in millions of dollars) 

 
Governmental 

Activities 

 Business-
type 

Activities 

 

Total 

Total 
Percentage 

Change 
 2014 2015  2014 2015  2014 2015 2014-2015 
Current and other assets $  7.0 $  11.1  $0.6 $  -0-  $ 7.6 $ 11.1    46% 
Capital assets 25.6 27.0  3.3 3.2  28.9 30.2     4.5% 
   Total assets 32.6 38.1 3.9 3.2 36.5 41.3    13.2%
Long-term debt  6.2 13.8   0.2  0.4  6.4 14.2     121.9% 
Other liabilities 3.0 4.8  0.5 0.4  3.6 5.2     44.4% 
   Total liabilities 9.2 18.6 0.8 0.8 10.0 19.4     94%
Net position          
Net Investment in                
capital assets 

20.1 16.6  2.8 2.9  22.9 19.5     (14.8)% 

Restricted 1.3 4.5  - -  1.3 4.5    246.2% 
Unrestricted 2.0    (1.6)  0.3  (0.5)  2.3 (2.1)    (191.3)-% 
Total net position $ 23.4 $ 19.5 $3.1 $2.4 $26.5 $21.9       (17.4)%

 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Miami Springs was able to report positive 
balances in two of the three categories of net position, both for the government as a whole, as 
well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities. The deficit balance reported 
for unrestricted net position is due to the implementation of GASB 68 as discussed earlier. 
 
Summary of Changes in net position.  The following information is presented to assist the 
reader in understanding the different types of normal impacts that can affect revenues:   
 

1) Economic condition can reflect a declining, stable or growing environment and has a 
substantial impact on property, non-ad valorem assessments, sales, gas, or other tax 
revenues as well as consumer spending habits for building permits, user fees and 
consumption. 



 8

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
 
Governmental Activities (continued) 

 
2) The City Council has significant authority to set increases or decreases in City’s 

rates (stormwater, sanitation, permitting, user fees, etc.). 
3) Changing patterns in intergovernmental and grant revenues (both recurring and 

non-recurring) can significantly change and impact the annual comparisons. 
4) Market impacts on investment income may cause investment revenues to fluctuate 

from the prior year. 
 
      Figure A-2 
     NET POSITION COMPARISON 

-5

0

5

10

15

20

25

in
 millions

FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2010 FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015
Governmental  Activities              Business-type Activities

Unrestricted Restricted Net investment in capital assets

 
 
Some other basic impacts on expenses are reflected below: 
 
1) Introduction of new programs can have a substantial impact on property, non-ad 

valorem assessments, sales, gas, or other tax revenues as well as consumer spending 
habits for building permits, user fees and consumption. 

2) Changes in service demand levels can cause the City to increase or decrease  
3) authorized staffing.  Staffing costs (salary and related benefits) represent approximately 

65% of the City’s general fund operating costs. 
4) Salary increases such as cost of living, performance increases and market adjustments 

can impact personal service costs. 
5) While inflation appears to be declining now, the City is a major consumer of certain 

commodities such as chemicals, supplies, fuels and parts.  Some functional expenses did 
experience unusually high commodity specific increases this past year. 

 
 
The City’s total net position increased by $535,418 to approximately $22 million for the current 
fiscal-year. . This indicates that ongoing expenses were less than ongoing revenues. 
 
 



 9

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
 
Governmental Activities (continued) 
 
The City’s total revenues increased by 1.6% to $18.7 million (see Table 2). This increase was 
due primarily to increases property tax revenues.  
 
Approximately 44% of the City’s revenues come from property taxes, and 61 cents of every 
dollar raised comes from some type of tax (see Figure A-3).  Another 20.5% comes from fees 
charged for services, and 15% comes from federal, state and local aid. Total costs of all 
programs and services decreased by approximately $900,000, or 4.7% (see Table 2). 
   
The City’s expenses cover a range of services; with about 51% related to public safety and 
business-type activities (see Figure A-4). 

FIGURE A-3
REVENUES BY SOURCE-GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

Property Taxes 44%

Utility Taxes 11%Franchise Taxes 5.8%

Intergovernmental 15%

Investment earnings 0.01%

Charges for services 20.49%

Misc 1.9%Grants/contributions 1.8%

 
 

FIGURE A-4
FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES FOR FY 2015

General government 
14%

Public safety 34%

Public works 13%

Recreation 22%

Business-type activities 
17%

 
 
 
 



 10

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
 
Governmental Activities (continued) 
 
Revenues for the City’s governmental activities increased 1.9% (from $15.9 million to $16.2 
million), while the expenses decreased 6.2% ($16.2 million to $15.2 million). The increase in 
net position for governmental activities was $1,010,572 in 2015. This compares to a $306,319 
decrease in 2014.  Key elements of the 2015 revenue increases/decreases are as follows: 
   

 Property tax revenues increased by approx. $500,000 due to increasing 
property values for FY 2015. 

 Charges for services decreased by $300,000 due to decreased building permit 
revenues during the year. 

 Operating grants increased by $100,000 due to additional grant funds received 
during the year for the Elderly Services operation. 

 
The functional activities that had expense decreases/increases compared to last fiscal year 
were: 

 General government decreased by approximately $100,000 or 4% due to 
decreased operating costs. 

 Public Safety decreased by approximately $700,000 or 10.5% over 2014 due 
to pension adjustments from the GASB 68 implementation. 

 Recreation decreased by approximately $200,000 or 4.8% over 2014 due to 
lower fuel and operating costs. 

 Public Works decreased by approximately $200,000 or 7.7% over 2014 due to 
lower fuel and operating costs. 

 
Table 2 

Changes in City of Miami Springs’ Net Position 
(in millions of dollars) 

 
 Governmental 

Activities 
 Business-type 

Activities 
 

Total 
Total Percentage 

Change    
 2014  2015  2014  2015  2014 2015 2014-2015 
Revenues            
 Program revenues            
 Charges for services $3.6  $3.3  $2.5  $2.5  $6.1 $5.8 (4.9)% 
 Operating grants and                      
contributions .2  .3  --  --  .2 .3 50% 

 Capital grants and  
  contributions -  --  --  --  - -- -% 

General revenues            
  Property taxes 6.7  7.2  --  --  6.7 7.2 7.5% 
  Franchise taxes .9  .9  --  --  .9 .9 -% 
  Utility taxes 1.8  1.8  --  --  1.8 1.8 -% 
  Investment & other income .3  .3  --  --  .3 .3 -% 
  Intergovernmental 2.4  2.4  --  --  2.4 2.4 - % 
    Total revenues 15.9  16.2  2.5  2.5  18.4 18.7 1.6% 
            
Expenses            
General government 2.5  2.4  --  --  2.5 2.4 (4)% 
Public safety 6.7  6.0  --  --  6.7 6.0 (10.5)% 
Public works 2.6  2.4  2.9  3.0  5.5 5.4 (1.8)% 
Parks and recreation 4.2  4.0  --  --  4.2 4.0 (4.8)% 
Economic & community 
development .1  .2  --  --  .1 .2  

100% 
Interest on long-debt .1  .2  --  --  .1 .2 100% 
    Total expenses 16.2  15.2  2.9  3.0  19.1 18.2 (4.7)% 
Increase (decrease) 
 in net position (.3)   1.0   

  
(.4)   (.5)  (.7)   .5 28.6% 

Net position,  
  September 30 $18.5  $19.5   $2.9  $2.4  $21.4 $21.9 2.34% 

Note:  Totals may not add due to rounding.         



 11

 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
 
Governmental Activities (continued) 
 
In FY 2015, the City’s millage rate was 7.6750 compared to 7.6750 in FY 2014. The City’s total 
general fund revenue sources were $130,230 lower than the final budgeted revenues of 
$15.47 million.  The total expenditures were less than budgeted by $123,681 due to staff 
vacancies and unused departmental expenditures. 
 
Table 3 presents the cost of each of the City’s five largest services—public safety, general 
government, recreation and social services, public works, and community development—as 
well as each service’s net cost (total cost less fees generated by the activities and 
intergovernmental aid).  The net cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the City’s 
taxpayers by each of these services. 
 

• The total cost of all governmental activities this year was $15.2 million. Some of that 
cost was financed by: 

 
 Those who directly benefited from the programs through charges for services 

($3.3 million) 
 Other governments and organizations that subsidized certain programs from 

operating grants and contributions ($300,000). 
 

• The City financed the remaining $11.6 million “public benefit” portion of governmental 
activities with $9.9 million in taxes, and with other revenues such as interest and 
unrestricted state aid. 

 
Table 3 

Net Cost of the City’s Governmental Activities 
(in millions of dollars) 

 
 Total Cost of 

Services 
Percentage 

Change 
Net Cost of 

Services 
Percentage 

Change 
 2014 2015 2014-2015 2014 2015 2014-2015
Public safety 6.7  6.0     (10.5)%    $ 6.2    $ 5.5 (11.3)% 
Recreation/social services 4.2  4.0    (4.8)%  2.5  2.2   (12)% 
General government 2.6  2.4    (7.7)%  0.9  1.2 33.3% 
Public works 2.6  2.4  (7.7)%  2.6  2.4 (7.7)% 
Community development .1  .2  100%  .1  .1 -% 
Interest on long term debt .1  .2   100%  .1  .2 100% 
Total $16.3  $15.2    (6.8)%  $12.4  $11.6 (6.5)% 

 
Business-type Activities 
 
For FY 2015, there was a decrease of approximately $930,064 in unrestricted net position and 
a decrease of $475,154 in total net position reported in connection with the City’s business-
type activities. 
 
Key elements of these changes are as follows: 
 

 The operating loss for all business-type activities was $470,465. 



 12

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
 
Business-type Activities (continued) 
 

 The sanitation operation posted an operating loss of $193,431. As was the case 
last year, this operation was self-supporting and did not require a general fund 
subsidy. 

 The stormwater utility operation reflected an operating loss of $277,034, 
however this loss was funded from available net position and as such, it too 
required no subsidy from the City’s general fund.  

 
For FY2015, revenues of the City’s business-type activities were $2,521,080 or approximately 
$33,443 (1.3%) higher than the prior year total (see Table 2).  
 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

in
 millions

General
Government

Public Safety Public works Recreation &
Social

Economic &
Community

development

Interest-Long term
debt

FiGURE A-5
Expenses & Program Revenues-Governmental Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2015

Expenses Program Revenues

 
Figure A-6 

0
0.5

1
1.5

2
2.5

in
 millions

Sanitation Stormwater

Expenses & Program Revenues-Business-type Activities For the Fiscal 
Year Ended September 30, 2015

Expenses Program revenues

 
Operating expenses for the business-type activities increased by $96,386 or 3.3% from 
FY2014 mainly due to increases in operating costs.  
 



 13

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS  
 
As the City completed the year, its governmental funds reported combined fund balances of 
$8.7 million, or an increase of $3.3 million compared to last year’s combined fund balances of 
$5.4 million. Included in this year’s total change, is an increase in the General Fund balance of 
approximately $127,395 which covered the operating surplus for FY2015. The primary 
reasons for the increase are the same as those that have already been highlighted in the 
analysis of governmental activities. The Capital Projects Fund reported fund balance of $4 
million or an increase of $3.6 million due to the loan proceeds received for the construction of 
the new aquatic facility. 
 
The General Fund 
 
The General fund is the chief operating fund of the City. General tax revenues and other 
receipts that are not allocated by law or by contractual agreement to another fund are 
accounted for in this fund. General operating expenses, fixed charges and capital 
improvement costs not paid through other funds are paid from this fund. At the end of the 
current fiscal year, the total fund balance of the general fund was $4.4 million, as compared 
with $4.3 million in the prior year. The breakdown of fund balance classifications is as follows:  
 

• Unassigned fund balance was $3.5 million compared to $3.9 million in FY2014; 
decrease was due to additional funds being committed to city-wide projects.  

 
• Committed was $661,148 compared to $243,341 in FY2014; increase is due to funds 

committed in FY2015 for contingency and other city-wide projects.as well as other 
appropriations made by Council during the year. 

 
• Non-spendable was $233,379 compared to $162,205 last year; variance is due to the 

ending encumbrance balance for the current year.   
 
During FY 2015, the General Fund provided a subsidy of $127,460 to the Senior Center Fund  
to cover the operating deficits of this operation for the fiscal year. 
 
When compared to 2014, total revenues for the General Fund increased by $226.158 or 1.5%. 
Licenses and permits decreased by approximately $386,868 due to the decreased building 
activity during the year. Property taxes increased by $482,107 due to the increase in assessed 
values for FY2015. 
 
In fiscal year 2015, total General Fund expenditures decreased by $204,635 or 1.4% 
compared to the prior year. The bulk of the decrease was a $837,499 or 20.2% decrease in 
Recreation and social services due to the significant equipment purchases for the golf 
operation made the prior year.  Public safety reported an increase of $458,669 due to pay 
raises, payouts to retiring police officers and equipment upgrades done during FY2015. It 
should be noted that other departments reported increases in operating costs due to higher 
than expected operating costs. 
 
The amount of General Fund revenue by type, their percent of the total and the amount of 
change compared to last fiscal year are shown on Table 4 below. 
 
 
 
 
 



 14

 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS (continued) 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights (continued) 
 
Over the course of the year, the City amended the General Fund budget five times.  The 
budget amendments fall into two categories:  (1) Amendments are approved for rollovers 
related to prior year encumbrances and (2) supplemental appropriations to provide 
appropriations for various other needs which have arisen since the adoption of the budget.   
 
Even with these adjustments, actual disbursements were $123,681 below final budgeted 
amounts. The most significant contributor to this variance was lower than budgeted 
expenditures in recreation of $114,455 due to lower operating costs. 
 
Other significant savings of $82,193 occurred in general government. These savings were due 
to lower than expected operating expenditures as well as personnel vacancies during the year.  
 
The fiscal year 2015 final amended budget was $14,277,360 or an increase of 1.7% over the 
original General Fund budget of $14,030,849. Compared to the Consumer Price Index (or 
inflation index) from the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics – All Urban Consumers South Urban 
area for the past year was approximately 0.7%.  The final Adopted Budget would provide a 
decrease of $38,891 to our year end fund balance. The original General Fund budget 
consisted of $14,030,849 in base expenditures and $1,318,127 in operating transfers to the 
other funds. 
 

 
 Percent  Percent Increase Percentage

2015 of 2014 of (Decrease) Increase
Revenue Sources Amount Total Amount Total From 2014 (Decrease)

Property taxes $7,151,308 46.6% $6,669,201 44.1% $482,107 7.2%
Franchise fees 945,594 6.2% 940,553 6.2% 5,041 0.5%
Utility taxes 1,193,635 7.8% 1,209,894 8.0% (16,259) -1.3%
Communications services tax 602,075 3.9% 598,314 4.0% 3,761 0.6%
Licenses and permits 656,344 4.3% 1,043,212 6.9% (386,868) -37.1%
Intergovernmental 1,926,246 12.6% 1,851,894 12.3% 74,352 4.0%
Charges for services 2,122,924 13.8% 2,124,889  14.1% (1,965) -0.1%
Fines and forfeitures 463,010 3.0% 421,708 2.8% 41,302 9.8%
Investment income 17,813 0.1% 12,042 0.1% 5,771 47.9%
Rental revenues 176,977 1.2% 152,003 1.0% 24,974 16.4%
Other revenues 85,392 0.6% 91,450 0.6% (6,058) -6.6%
Total revenues $15,341,318 100.0% $15,115,160 100.0% $226,158 1.5%

Table 4
General Fund Revenues 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 15

 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS (continued) 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights (continued) 
 
Expenditures in the General Fund are shown in the table below:  
 

 
 Percent  Percent Increase Percentage

2015 of 2014 of (Decrease) Increase
Expenditures Amount Total Amount Total From 2014 (Decrease)

General government services $2,297,767 16.2% $2,253,344 15.7% $44,423 2.0%
Public safety 6,829,104 48.2% 6,370,435 44.4% 458,669 7.2%
Public works 1,721,639 12.2% 1,591,867 11.1% 129,772 8.2%
Recreation and social services 3,305,170 23.4% 4,142,669  28.9% (837,499) -20.2%
Total expenditures $14,153,680 100.0% $14,358,315 100.0% ($204,635) -1.4%

Table 5
General Fund Expenditures

  
 
 
Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget increased 
appropriations by $246,511 and can be briefly summarized as follows: 
 

♦ $67,063 in encumbrances carried over from FY2013-14. 
♦ $179,448 in additional appropriations related to miscellaneous citywide repair and 

maintenance expenditures. 
 
These increases were to be budgeted from loan proceeds and available fund balance, 
however, during the year, expenditures were less than budgetary estimates, thus reducing the 
amount of unassigned fund balance that needed to be used. 
 
The decrease between the estimated revenues and the actual revenues in the General Fund 
was approximately $130,230 for FY 2015. 
 
The difference between the appropriations and the actual expenditures in the General Fund 
was approximately $123,681 for fiscal year 2015.  These variances are explained below: 
 

• Lower than budgeted expenditures in recreation of $114,455 and in general 
government of $82,193 due to personnel vacancies during the year as well as lower 
operating costs.  

 
Other Major Governmental Funds 
 
Debt Service Fund- This fund is used to account for the accumulation of transfers from other 
funds and payment of principal and interest and fiscal charges on the City’s debt which are 
payable from non-ad valorem taxes. Total other financing sources for FY2015 were 
$2,919,517 compared to $698,761 in FY2014 mainly due to the $2 million issuance of debt 
proceeds related to the refunding of the community center note.. The fund balance increased 
by $3,349 to $3,844 at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
 
 



 16

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS (continued) 
 
Other Major Governmental Funds (continued) 
 
Capital Projects Fund- This fund is used to account city-wide capital projects such as the 
Con Ed energy conservation project, the aquatic facility project and the Stafford Park 
improvement project. All of these projects are being financed through issuance of debt. During 
the year the fund reported revenues of $1,788 mainly from investment revenues and issuance 
of debt of $5,586,998. Expenditures for the year totaled $2,036,014. The fund balance at year 
end was $4,048,069 and will be appropriated in FY2016 for the completion of these projects. 
 
 
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital assets (See Table 6). The City of Miami Springs’ investment in capital assets for its 
governmental and business type activities as of September 30, 2015 increased by $1.4 million 
from the prior year. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and system 
improvements, machinery and equipment, streets and median improvements, park facilities, 
and stormwater infrastructure.   

 
Table 6 

City of Miami Springs’ Capital Assets 
(net of depreciation, in millions of dollars) 

Governmental 
Actvities

Business-type 
Actvities Total

Total 
Percentage 

Change
2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014-15

Land  $     3.1  $     3.1  $      -    $      -    $     3.1  $     3.1 0.0%
Buildings 13.9 13.9 0.0 0.0 13.9 13.9 -0.4%
Improvements other than 
buildings 1.2 1.2 0.0 0.0 1.2 1.2 0.0%

Equipment 3.1 2.8 1.0 1.0 4.1 3.8 -6.8%
Infrastructure 3.1 3.0 2.2 2.2 5.3 5.2 -1.9%
Construction in progress 1.2 3.1 0.1 0.0 1.3 3.1 138.5%
Total  $   25.6  $   27.1  $     3.3  $     3.2  $   28.9  $   30.3 4.7%
 
This year’s major capital asset additions before depreciation for the governmental activities 
equaled approximately $2,834,703 and includes the following: 
 
• The City completed the city-wide Con Edison Energy Conservation Project, and 

commenced the Aquatic Facility Project. 
• Upgrading of Police communications software and computer. 
• Scheduled replacement of certain police vehicles and other police equipment, public 

works trucks and equipment, and other citywide equipment and infrastructure.  
 

This year’s major capital asset additions before depreciation for the business-type activities 
equaled $259,065 and includes the following: 
 

• Purchase of backhoe for the Stormwater operation. 
• City-wide Stormwater drainage projects. 

 
Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 on pages 42 to 43 of 
this report. 
 



 17

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (continued) 
 
Long-term debt. At year-end the City had $8.5 million in notes payable and $2.3 in capital 
leases payable, as shown in Table 7.  Total debt increased by approximately $4.8 million or 
80%. This increase was due to the new aquatic facility note executed in FY2015. 
 
The debt position of the City is summarized below and is more fully explained in Note 6, Long-
Term Debt, beginning on page 43. 

 
Table 7 

City of Miami Springs’ Debt 
(in millions of dollars) 

Governmental 
Actvities

Business-type 
Actvities Total

Total 
Percentage 

Change
2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014-15

                           
Notes payable 3.4 8.4 0.1 0.1 3.5 8.5 142.9%
Capital lease payable 2.1 2.0 0.4 0.3 2.5 2.3 -8.0%
Total  $     5.5  $   10.4  $     0.5  $     0.4  $     6.0  $   10.8 80.0%

 
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATIOS 
 
The City of Miami Springs is a residential community, single family community. As such, 
standard economic indicators used to determine the overall health of a community are slightly 
different for Miami Springs. The City recognizes the importance of increasing its commercial 
tax base, for FY2015 the commercial portion of the total assessed values was 34% compared 
to 24% back in FY2009. The City continues to attract new hotel and other commercial 
developments in order to continue increasing its commercial tax base. Quality recreational 
activities, including the City’s golf course, community center, new aquatic facility (expected to 
open in 2016) support the residents’ requirements for high standards and outstanding 
recreation and leisure activities. This, along with its own public safety department, provides a 
higher standard of living than that which is found in surrounding municipalities.    
   
The State of Florida, by constitution, does not have a state personal income tax and therefore, 
the State operates primarily using sales, gasoline and corporate income taxes. Local 
governments (cities, counties and school boards) primarily rely upon property taxes and a 
limited array of permitted other taxes (sales, telecommunication, gasoline, utilities services, 
etc.) and fees (franchise, building permits, occupational license, etc.) for funding of their 
governmental activities. In addition, there are a limited number of state-shared revenues and 
recurring and non-recurring (one-time) grants from both the state and federal governments.  
 
On January 29, 2008 the Florida electorate approved an amendment to the Florida 
Constitution relative to property taxation.  This amendment (referred to as Amendment 1) was 
placed on the ballot by the Florida Legislature at a special session held in October 2007.  With 
respect to homestead property, Amendment 1 increases the current $25,000 homestead 
exemption by another $25,000 (for property values between $50,000 - $75,000), except for 
school district taxes.  Since the new $25,000 homestead exemption does not apply to school 
district taxes, this effectively amounts to a $15,000 increase to the existing homestead 
exemption. Amendment 1 also allows property owners to transfer (make portable) up to 
$500,000 of their Save Our Homes benefits to their next homestead when they move.  Save 
Our Homes became effective in 1995 and limits (caps) the annual increase in assessed value  



 18

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATIOS (CONTINUED) 
 
for homestead property to three percent (3%) or the percentage change in the Consumer Price 
Index, whichever is less. With respect to non-homestead property, Amendment 1 limits (caps) 
the annual increase in assessed value for non-homestead property (businesses, industrial 
property, rental property, second homes, etc.) to ten percent (10%), except for school district 
taxes.  The Amendment also provides a $25,000 exemption for tangible personal 
property.  Amendment 1 became effective on October 1, 2008, with the exception of the ten 
percent (10%) assessment cap on non-homestead property which became effective on 
January 1, 2009.  Additional tax relief bills are expected to be introduced at the upcoming 
legislative session which could, if ratified, further limit the extent to which municipalities can 
levy taxes. 
Revenues (excluding transfers) in the FY 2016 adopted General Fund budget are $15.5 
million, an increase of approximately 1.3% from the FY 2015 actual revenues of $15.3 million. 
Property taxes account for most of this increase. 
 
Fiscal year 2016 budgeted expenditures and transfers are expected to be $15.5 million, or 
1.3%, higher than the fiscal year 2015 actual of $15.2 million. Given the current economic 
conditions, the City’s budgetary General Fund balance is expected to report a modest increase 
in FY2015-16. 
 
During the current fiscal year, the total fund balance in the General Fund was $4.4 million 
compared to $4.3 million from last year. This $4.4 million is approximately equal to 2.8 months 
of General Fund budgeted expenditures. Between fiscal years 2002 and 2015, the City, as can 
be seen at Figure A-7, rebuilt its fund balance to over $4.4 million. During the past 5 fiscal 
years the city has been using reserves to fund repairs and/or replacement of its aging 
infrastructure as well as replacement of aging equipment in its golf course and public works 
operations. During the FY2014-2015 fiscal year, the city continued this effort by using a portion 
of the unassigned fund balance to fund certain infrastructure projects, equipment purchases, 
repairs, and other Council approved appropriations.  
 
In 1995, the state of Florida limited all local governments’ ability to increase property taxable 
values in any given year to 3 percent or cost of living, whichever is lower. Figure A-8 illustrates 
that the City has maintained a stable property tax rate for the past three years. For many 
years, the City, just like many cities across the country, had to face the challenge of keeping 
taxes and service charges as low as possible while providing residents with the level of service 
they have come to expect. 
 

-$2,000,000

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

          Figure A-7
 General Fund Unrestricted Surplus (Deficit) 

   For the fiscal year ended September 30,



 19

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATIOS (CONTINUED) 
 
The operating millage rate for tax year 2015, which is collected in fiscal year 2016, is 7.5000 or 
$7.50 per thousand dollars of taxable value.  Overall, the adopted budget is an economical  
and prudent financial plan that will ensure quality public services and needed capital 
improvements for all residents, both today and in the future.  
 
Property values for fiscal year 2015 were $983,506,655 or an increase of approximately $37 
million or 3.9% from the $946,504,898 in final taxable value for the prior fiscal year. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Requests for Information 
 
The City’s financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayers, customers, 
investors and creditors) with a general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the 
City’s accountability. The financial statements are available on the City’s website at 
www.miamisprings-fl.gov.  If you have questions about the report or need additional financial 
information, contact William Alonso, CPA, CGFO, Finance Director, City of Miami Springs, 201 
Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 33166. 

Figure A-8
Total City Millage

8.
14

36

7.
9

7.
50

00

6.
43

05

6.
16

98

6.
47

1

6.
74

6.
99

5

7.
67

1

7.
67

1

7.
5

6.
3

0

2

4

6

8

10

FY20
05

FY20
06

FY20
07

FY20
08

FY20
09

FY20
10

FY20
11

FY20
12

FY20
13

FY20
14

FY20
15

FY20
16

M
ill

s

Operating Millage Debt Service Millage



 

 

 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 





















 

 

 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 



 

 29

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

A. Financial Reporting Entity 
 

The City of Miami Springs, Florida (the "City") is a political subdivision of the State of Florida 
located in Miami-Dade County.  The City operates under a Council-Manager form of 
government.  The City Council is governed by the City Charter and by state and local laws 
and regulations.  The City Council is responsible for the establishment and adoption of policy.  
The execution of such policy is the responsibility of the Council-appointed City Manager.  The 
City provides public safety, general government, recreation and public works services to its 
residents.  The City does not provide educational, fire or hospital facilities.  Those services 
are provided by the Miami-Dade County School Board and Miami-Dade County, respectively. 
The accompanying financial statements present the City for the fiscal year ended September 
30, 2015. 

 
As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these basic financial statements 
present the reporting entity of the City. Component units are legally separate entities for 
which the government is considered to be financially accountable and for which the nature 
and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion 
would cause the City’s combined financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The 
primary government is considered financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of an 
organization’s governing body and 1) it is able to impose its will on the organization or 2) 
there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefit to or impose 
specific financial burden on the Board. Additionally, the primary government is required to 
consider other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with 
the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity financial 
statements to be misleading or incomplete. 
 
Based on the application of the criteria set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board, management has determined that one entity met the definition for inclusion as a 
blended component unit. There were no discretely presented component unis. 
 
Blended Component Unit – Miami Springs Properties, Inc. (MSPI) was incorporated during 
fiscal year 2012 and is a wholly owned subsidiary of the City and a blended component unit 
of the City. MSPI is governed by the City’s elected council. MSPI is included as a blended 
component unit because the City is able to impose its will on MSPI and there is a direct 
financial benefit to the City. MSPI has a calendar year end and its first year of operations was 
for the year ended December 31, 2012. The December 31, 2014 financial statements are 
reported as a special revenue fund and does not issue separate financial statements. See 
Note 11 for additional information regarding this entity. 
 

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements 
 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City.  For 
the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant 
extent on fees and charges for support. 
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or segment are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are  



 

 30

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements (Continued) 
 
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.  Program revenues include 1) charges 
to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or 
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or 
segment.  Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are 
reported instead as general revenues. 

 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.  
Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as 
separate columns in the fund financial statements. 
 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation 
 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial 
statements.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.  Property taxes are 
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have 
been met. 
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized 
as soon as they are both measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be 
available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay 
liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the City considers receivables collected 
within 60 days after year-end to be available and recognizes them as revenues of the current 
year.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
accounting.  However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to 
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 
 
Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal 
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as 
revenues of the current fiscal period.  All other revenue items are considered to be 
measurable and available only when the City receives cash. 
 
The City reports the following major governmental funds: 
 
The general fund is the City’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all financial resources 
of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

        
The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of transfers from other funds 
and payment of principal and interest and fiscal charges on the City’s debt which are payable 
from non-ad valorem taxes. 
 
The capital projects fund is used to account for city-wide construction projects. 
 
The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 
 
The sanitation fund accounts for the operations of solid waste collection services, which are 
funded through user charges. 
 



 

 31

 
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation (Continued) 

 
The stormwater fund accounts for the infrastructure and operations of stormwater 
transportation, which is funded through user charges. 
 
The financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard setting body for governmental 
accounting and financial reporting. The financial statements of the City follow the guidance of 
GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance 
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements for both the 
government wide and proprietary fund financial statements. Governments also have the 
option of following subsequent FASB pronouncements for their business-type activities and 
enterprise funds subject to this same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent 
FASB guidance. 
 
As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements.  Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City’s 
enterprise fund functions and various other functions of the City.  Elimination of these 
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various 
functions concerned. 
 
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for 
goods, services, or privileges provided, and 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) 
capital grants and contributions, including special assessments.  Internally dedicated 
resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.  Likewise, 
general revenues include all taxes. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing 
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  
The principal operating revenues of the sanitation and stormwater funds, are charges to 
customers for services. 
 
Operating expenses for the enterprise funds include the cost of services, administrative 
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this 
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to 
use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as needed. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD STATEMENTS 
 
The City implemented the following GASB Statement during the fiscal year ended September 
30, 2015 that had an impact on the financial statements: 
 
 GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions; an 
amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. 
 
This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 27 and No. 50 related to 
pension plans that are administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements.  
 
 
 



 

 32

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
D. Deposits and Investments 

 
The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, 
and short-term investments with original maturities of six months or less from the date of  
acquisition. The City maintains a pooled cash account for all funds.  This enables the City to 
invest large amounts of idle cash for short periods of time and to optimize earnings potential. 
 
The City’s investments are reported at fair value the majority of which are in the form of 
certificate of deposits, money market accounts, and overnight repo accounts with qualified 
public depositories.   
 

E. Receivables and Payables 
 
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements 
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” 
(i.e. the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e. the non-
current portion of interfund loans).  All other outstanding balances between funds are 
reported as “due to/from other funds.”  Any residual balances outstanding between the 
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide 
financial statements as “internal balances.” 
 
All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles.  
Uncollectible accounts receivable allowances are based on historical trends. 
 

F. Property Taxes 
 
Property values are assessed as of January 1 of each year, at which time taxes become an 
enforceable lien on property.  Tax bills are mailed for the City by Miami Dade County on or 
about October 1 of each year and are payable with discounts of up to 4% offered for early 
payment.  Taxes become delinquent on April 1 of the year following the year of assessment 
and State law provides for enforcement of collection of property taxes by seizure of the 
personal property or by the sale of interest-bearing tax certificates to satisfy unpaid property 
taxes. 
 
Assessed values are established by the Miami-Dade County Property Appraiser.  In 
November 1992, a Florida constitutional amendment was approved by the voters, which 
provides for limiting the increases in homestead property valuations for ad valorem tax 
purposes to a maximum of 3% annually and also provides for reassessment of market values 
upon changes in ownership.  The County bills and collects all property taxes and remits them 
to the City. 

 
State statutes permit municipalities to levy property taxes at a rate of up to 10 mills ($10 per 
$1,000 of assessed taxable valuation).  The tax levy of the City is established by the City 
Council and the Miami-Dade County Property Appraiser incorporates the City’s millage into 
the total tax levy, which includes the County and the County School Board tax requirements.  
The millage rate assessed by the City for the year ended September 30, 2015 was 7.6750 
mills ($7.675 per $1,000 of taxable assessed valuation).   

 
G. Inventories and Prepaid Costs 

 
Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.  The costs of 
governmental fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather 
than when purchased (consumption method). 
 
 



 

 33

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

G. Inventories and Prepaid Costs (Continued) 
 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 

H. Restricted Assets 
 

Proceeds from forfeiture funds are classified as restricted in the Law Enforcement Special 
Revenue Fund since these resources are specifically earmarked for law enforcement 
purposes only. Additionally, proceeds from the People’s Transportation Tax are classified as 
restricted since these resources may only be used for road and transportation related 
expenditures.  

 
I. Capital Assets 

 
Capital assets include, property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, 
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or 
business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.  The City 
defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $1,000 and an 
estimated useful life in excess of one year.  Purchased or constructed assets are recorded at 
historical cost or estimated historical cost.  Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated 
fair market value at the date of donation. 

 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are 
constructed.  The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add value to the asset 
or materially extend its useful life are not capitalized. 

 
Capital assets of the City are depreciated using the straight line method over the following 
estimated useful lives: 

 
Assets  Years 
Buildings  50 
Improvements  20-30 
Public domain infrastructure  40 
System infrastructure  50 
Furniture and equipment  5-10 

 
 J.    Unearned Revenues 
 

Unearned revenues include amounts collected before revenue recognition criteria are met. 
Receivables, which, under the modified accrual basis of accounting, are measurable, but not 
yet available would be presented as deferred inflows of resources. The unearned items 
consist primarily of license and permit revenues, and developer fees related to the tax credit 
transaction. 

 
K. Compensated Absences 

 
City employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on length of 
service and the department, which the employee serves. It is the City's sick leave policy to 
permit employees to accumulate earned but unused sick pay benefits. 
 
The City's vacation policy is that earned vacation must be taken within one year of the 
employee's anniversary date, as there is no carryover from one period to another.  Unused 
vacation pay, if any, is paid with the employee's termination or retirement. 



 

 34

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

K. Compensated Absences (Continued) 
 

The liability for these compensated absences is recorded as a long-term debt in the 
government-wide financial statements.  The current portion of this debt is estimated based on 
historical trends.  In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report only the 
compensated absences that have matured (i.e. unused reimbursable leave still outstanding 
following an employee’s resignation or retirement), while the proprietary funds report the 
liability as it is incurred. For governmental activities, compensated absences are generally 
liquidated by the General Fund. 

 
L. Long-Term Obligations 
 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the  
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement 
of net position.  Bond issuance costs are expensed in the period that the debt is issued.   
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period.  The face amount of 
debt issued is reported as other financing sources.  Premiums received on debt issuances 
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as 
other financing uses.  Issuance costs are reported as debt service expenditures. 
 

M. Net Position 
 

Total equity as of September 30, 2015, is classified into three components of net position: 
 

• Net investment in capital assets:  This category consists of capital assets (including 
restricted capital assets), net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by any 
outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are 
attributable to the acquisition, construction, and improvements of those assets. 

 
• Restricted net position:  This category consists of net assets restricted in their use by 

(1) external groups such as grantors, creditors or laws and regulations of other 
governments; or (2) law, through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

 
• Unrestricted net position:  This category includes all of the remaining net position that 

does not meet the definition of the other two categories. 
 

Reconciliation of Net investment in capital assets-Governmental Activities 

 

Capital assets - net 27,019,327$        
Bonds and loans payable (10,412,110)       
Net investment in capital assets 16,607,217$       

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 35

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
M. Net Position (continued) 
 
Adjustments to Net Position of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

 
Net position of the governmental activities, as of October 1, 2014, was restated due to implementation of 
GASB 68: 

 
Net position – beginning as previously reported $   23,410,801 
Record net pension liability per GASB Statement No. 68        (5,751,392) 
Eliminate net pension asset per GASB Statement No. 68 (160,893) 
Record deferred outflows per GASB Statement No. 68  1,031,363 
Net position – beginning as restated $ 18,529,879 

 

Net position of the business type activities, as of October 1, 2014, was restated due to implementation of 
GASB 68: 

 
Net position – beginning as previously reported $  3,098,054 
Record net pension liability per GASB Statement No. 68          (264,477)   
Record deferred outflows GASB Statement No. 68            80,566 
Net position – beginning as restated  $  2,914,143 

 
Net position of the Sanitation fund, as of October 1, 2014, was restated due to implementation of GASB 68: 

 
Net position – beginning as previously reported $  612,811 
Record net pension liability per GASB Statement No 68           (216,390)  
Record deferred outflows GASB Statement No 68             65,917 
Net position – beginning as restated  $  462,338 

 

Net position of the Stormwater fund, as of October 1, 2014, was restated due to implementation of GASB 68: 

 
Net position – beginning as previously reported $  2,485,243 
Record net pension liability per GASB Statement No 68             (48,087)  
Record deferred outflows GASB Statement No 68             14,648 
Net position – beginning as restated  $  2,451,804 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 

 36

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 N. Fund Balance-Governmental Funds (Continued) 

As of September 30, 2015, fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows: 

Non-spendable — Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in non-
spendable form or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained 
intact. 

      Restricted — Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or because of constraints that are 
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of 
other governments. 

Committed — Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a 
formal action of the City Council.  Ordinances and resolutions approved by the City 
Council is the highest level of decision-making authority for the City. Commitments 
may be established, modified, or rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions 
approved by the City Council. Ordinances and resolutions are equally binding.  

Assigned — Amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or 
committed but that are intended to be used for specific purposes. Under the City’s 
adopted policy, only the City Council may assign amounts for specific purposes. 

Unassigned — All other spendable amounts. 
 
When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund 
balance is available, the City considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an 
expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are 
available, the City considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then 
assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the City Council has 
provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions. 
 
In fiscal year 2010, the City Council adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the General 
Fund. The policy requires the unassigned fund balance at fiscal year end to be equal to 25% 
of the operating expenditures and transfers out budgeted for the General Fund in the 
subsequent year. The City was in compliance with this policy at September 30, 2015 without 
significant exception. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 37

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 N. Fund Balance-Governmental Funds (Continued) 

As of September 30, 2015, fund balances are composed of the following: 
 

Major Special Major Capital  
Revenue Fund Projects Fund Nonmajor Total

General Capital Governmental Governmental
Fund Debt Service Projects Funds Funds

Fund balances:
  Nonspendable:

Inventories 146,979$          -$                           -$                       -$                       146,979$            
Prepaid expenses 86,400             -                             -                         -                         86,400                

  Restricted for:   
Law enforcement -                       -                             -                         430,063              430,063              
Debt service -                       3,844                     -                         -                         3,844                 
Transit & Transportation -                       -                             -                         62,566                62,566                
Capital projects -                       -                             4,048,069           -                         4,048,069           

  Committed to:  
Hurricane contingency 500,000           -                             -                         -                         500,000              
Recreation projects 126,414           -                             -                         -                         126,414              
Police projects 24,734             -                             -                         -                         24,734                
Other city projects 10,000             -                             -                         -                         10,000                

  Assigned to:  
Unassigned: 3,496,514         -                             -                         (196,105)            3,300,409           

Total fund balances 4,391,041$       3,844$                   4,048,069$         296,524$            8,739,478$         

Major Special Major Capital  
Revenue Fund Projects Fund Nonmajor Total

General Capital Governmental Governmental
Fund Debt Service Projects Funds Funds

Fund balances:
  Nonspendable 233,379$          -$                           -$                       -$                       233,379$            
  Restricted -                       3,844                     4,048,069           430,063              4,481,976           
  Committed 661,148           -                             -                         -                         661,148              
  Assigned -                       -                             -                         62,566                62,566$              
  Unassigned 3,496,514         -                             -                         (196,105)            3,300,409           

Total fund balances 4,391,041$       3,844$                   4,048,069$         296,524$            8,739,478$         

 
 
O. Use of Estimates 

 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the amounts of assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities, 
revenues, and expenditures/expenses reported in the financial statements and 
accompanying notes. These estimates include assessing the collectability of receivables, 
OPEB, the realization of pension assets and the useful lives of capital assets. Although those 
estimates are based on management’s knowledge of current events and actions it may 
undertake in the future, they may ultimately differ from actual results. 

 

 
 

 



 

 38

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

P.  Pensions 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about 
the fiduciary net position of the City of Miami Springs’ General Employees’ Pension Plan and 
the Police & Firefighters Pension Plan (“the Plans”) and additions to/deductions from the 
Plans fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by 
the Plans. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) 
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are 
reported at fair value.  

 
Q.  Post Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) 

Pursuant to Section 112.0801, Florida Statutes, the City is mandated to permit participation in 
the health insurance program by retirees and their eligible dependents at a cost to the retiree 
that is no greater than the cost at which coverage is available for active employees.  Retirees 
are required to pay 100% of the premium rates where premiums are determined based upon 
a blended rates used for active employees and retirees.  These premium rates were adjusted 
to reflect differing utilization rates by age and gender and the impact of the Medicare program 
on claim costs.  The blended rates provide an implicit subsidy for retirees because, on an 
actuarial basis, their current and future claims are expected to result in higher costs to the 
plan on average than those of active employees.   

The City currently provides these benefits in accordance with the vesting and retirement 
requirement of the City of Miami Springs Retirement System and Elected Officials Retirement 
Plan covering substantially all elected officials, regular full time general, and police 
department employees of the City. 

The City is financing the post employee benefits on a pay-as-you go basis.  As determined by 
an actuarial valuation, the City records a Net OPEB obligation in its government-wide and 
proprietary financial statements related to the implicit subsidy.  The OPEB plan does not 
issue separate financial statements. 

R.  Net Position Flow Assumption 
Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and 
unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted- net position 
and unrestricted-net position in the government-wide financial statements, a flow assumption 
must be made about the order in which resources are considered to be applied. It is the City’s 
policy to consider restricted-net position to have been depleted before unrestricted-net 
position is applied. 

2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 

By its nature as a local government unit, the City is subject to various federal, state, and local 
laws and contractual regulations.  The City has no material violations of finance-related legal 
and contractual obligations. 
 
Fund Accounting Requirements 
 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that 
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The City, like any other state and 
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance 
related requirements, bond covenants, and segregation for management purposes. 
 
 
 



 

 39

2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED) 
 
Revenue Restrictions 
 
The City has various restrictions placed over certain revenue sources from federal, state, or 
local requirements. 
 
The primary revenue sources include: 

 
Revenue Source 

  
Legal Restrictions of Use 

Gas Tax  Roads, sidewalks, streets 
Transportation Tax  Transportation and roads 
Nutrition Program for the Elderly  Grant Program Expenditures 
Department of Health & Human Services  Grant Program Expenditures 
Federal Forfeitures  Law Enforcement 

 
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, the City complied, in all material respects, 
with these revenue restrictions.  

 
Excesses of expenditures over appropriations  

 
 For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015 expenditures exceeded appropriations in the 

General fund for the following departments; Human resources $10,889, finance $34,661, 
police $60,176, public works-building maintenance $53,562, public works-fleet maintenance  

 $19,582 recreation-aquatics $3,433, recreation-golf pro shop $66,458 and recreation-golf 
maintenance $29,779. These over-expenditures were funded by available fund balance and 
greater than anticipated revenues in the General fund.  

  
3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 

The City, for accounting and investment purposes, maintains a cash and investment pool for use 
by all City funds.  This gives the City the ability to invest large amounts of idle cash for short 
periods of time and to maximize earning potential.  Each fund’s portion of this pool is displayed on 
the balance sheets as cash and equity in pooled cash and investments.  Income earned on 
pooled cash and investments is allocated to the respective funds based on relative month-end 
balances. In addition, cash and investments are separately held by the City’s Enterprise Funds 
and related investment income is recorded in these funds.   
 
The City does not have a written investment policy and follows the State of Florida investment 
policy as set forth in State Statute 218-415. Allowable investments include United States 
government obligations, guaranteed United States agency short-term issues, Florida bank 
certificates of deposit, and investments authorized by City Council. 

 
As of September 30, 2015, the City had the following investments: 
 
 
 
Investment Type 

 
 
 

Fair Value 

 Weighted 
Average 
Maturity 
(Days) 

BB&T Money Market     $   983,728 1 
Sabadell United Bank Money Market 
  

  2,505,700 
 

      1 

Total Fair Value $ 3,489,428  
Portfolio weighted average maturity 1 

. 
 
 



 

 40

3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Interest Rate Risk – The City does not have a written policy on interest rate risk, however, the 
City manages its exposure to declines in fair values by limiting the weighted average monthly 
maturity of its investment portfolio to less than six months (180 days). At September 30, 2015, the 
portfolio’s weighted average maturity was 1 day.  
 
Credit Risk – The City’s investment policy specifically sets parameters to minimize the City’s 
credit risk by: 
 

• Limiting investments to the safest type of issuer 
• Pre-qualifying the financial institution, pools, money market funds, and broker/dealer with 

which the City will do business, and 
• Diversifying the investment portfolio so that potential losses on individual issuers will be 

minimized. 
 
The City’s investments are with institutions that are designated public depositories by the State of 
Florida, all funds in those institutions are collaterized. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk – There are no limits on the amount that may be invested in 
Certificates of Deposits (CD’s) placed with public depositories. At September 30, 2015, 14% of 
the City’s investments were in the form of CD’s.   
 
Custodial credit risk (deposits) - In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank 
failure, the City’s deposits may not be returned to it. All of the City’s deposits are entirely insured 
by federal depository insurance or collateralized by the multiple financial institution collateral pool  
pursuant to Florida Statutes, Chapter 280, “Florida Security for Public Deposits Act.” Under the 
Act, all qualified public depositories are required to pledge eligible collateral having a fair value 
equal to or greater than the average daily or monthly balance of all public deposits, multiplied by 
the depository’s collateral pledging level. The book value of the City’s deposits on the balance 
sheet date was $5,025,083. The bank balance of the City’s deposits as of September 30, 2015 
was $5,256,881. 
 
Custodial credit risk (investments) – For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the 
failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investment. The 
City’s investments in the BB&T Money Market account are entirely insured by federal depository 
insurance or collateralized by the multiple financial institution collateral pool  
 
A reconciliation of deposits and investments as shown on the balance sheet and the statement of 
net assets is as follows: 

 
 

The City does not participate in any securities lending transactions nor has it used held or written 
derivative financial instruments. 
 

 
 
 
 

Per Statement of Net Position  By Category 

Cash and equity in pooled cash $  3,940.270  Cash $         7,529 
  and investments    
Restricted assets:  Deposits  5,227,596 
  Cash and cash equivalents     4,784,283  Investments   3,489,428 
 $  8,724,553   $8,724,553 
    



 

 41

4. RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 
 

Receivables at year-end for the City’s governmental funds, including the applicable allowance for 
uncollectible accounts, are as follows: 
 

 Non-major Total

General Governmental Receivables

Governmental activities

  Accounts 170,611$         -$                      170,611$           

  Taxes 710,198           124,518             834,716             

  Other 56,289             53,099               109,388             

Gross receivables 937,098           177,617             1,114,715          

Less: Allowance for Uncollectibles (61,288)            -                        (61,288)              

Net total receivables 875,810$         177,617$           1,053,427$         
 
Receivables at year-end for the City’s business-type activities, including the applicable allowance 
for uncollectible accounts, are as follows: 
    
 Sanitation Stormwater Totals 

Accounts $267,820 $ 46,477 $314,297 
   
Less:  Allowance for Un-collectibles  (132,758)  (10,059) (142,817) 
  
Net total receivables $  135,062 $  36,418 $171,480 

 
Governmental funds report deferred inflows of resources for receivables on revenues considered 
to be not yet available to liquidate liabilities of the current period.  Governmental funds also report 
unearned revenues on revenues received but not yet earned.  On September 30, 2015, unearned 
revenue in the governmental funds amounted to $75,569 representing FY 2015-16 occupational 
licenses that were paid in advance. In addition, there were $398,619 in deferred developer fees 
related to the blended component unit as a result of the tax credit transaction. 
 

Revenues of the Sanitation and Stormwater funds are reported net of uncollectible amounts. The 
allowance for uncollectibles was adjusted against current revenues. Total uncollectible amounts 
related to revenues of the current period are as follows: 

Uncollectibles related to solid waste fees 132,757    
$                        Uncollectibles related to stormwater fees    10,059  

Total uncollectibles of the current fiscal year $142,816 
  
Payables at September 30, 2015 were as follows: 
  Vendors 
Governmental activities:   
 General $       190,068
 Capital Projects Fund          302,208
 Nonmajor funds           45,903 
         Total governmental activities $       538,179  
Business-type activities: 
 Sanitation            42,481
            Total business-type activities  $         42,481 



 

 42

5. CAPITAL ASSETS 
       
            Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015 was as follows: 

     
 Balance  Deletions/ Balance 

 October 1, 2014 Additions Transfers Sept. 30, 2015 
Governmental activities     

Capital assets not being depreciated:     

Land $       3,085,904 - $                 -   $       3,085,904 
Construction in progress        1,215,308   2,017,020      (150,721)            3,081,607 

Total capital assets not being depreciated        4,301,212    2,017,020        (150,721        6,167,511 

 
Capital assets being depreciated: 

    

Building 18,049,799 304,784 - 18,354,583 
Infrastructure 16,505,233         - - 16,505,233 
Improvements other than buildings 3,516,690 217,613 - 3,737,303 
Machinery and equipment         8,162,601      295,286        (185,702)          8,272,185 
Total capital assets being depreciated       46,234,323    817,683        (185,702)        46,866,304 

Less accumulated depreciation for:     
Building (4,159,048) (352,826) - (4,511,874)
Infrastructure (13,280,437) (184,376) - (13,464,813)
Improvements other than buildings (2,393,521) (152,371) - (2,545,892)
Machinery and equipment         (5,083,132)      (544,376)        135,598         (5,491,910)
Total accumulated depreciation       (24,916,138)   (1,233,949)        135,598       (26,014,489)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net        21,318,185      (416,266)       (50,104)          20,851,815 
Governmental activities capital assets, net $     25,619,397 $ 1,600,754 $    (200,825)  $     27,019,327 

     

     
 Balance  Deletions/ Balance 

 October 1, 2014 Additions Transfers September 30,  2015 
Business-type activities     

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
  Construction in Progress                  
     Total capital assets not being depreciated 
 
Capital assets being depreciated: 

 
$           67,652 
            67,652 

 
          -   

- 

 
        (67,652)   

(67,652)   

 
$                    - 
                      - 

Infrastructure  4,411,498 236,302                  -        4,647,800 
Machinery and equipment       2,139,645       22,763                   -       2,162,408 
Total capital assets being depreciated      6,551,143      259,065                 -       6,810,208 

Less accumulated depreciation for:     
Infrastructure  (2,249,987) (150,090)                       -      (2,400,077) 

Machinery and equipment      (1,057,074)      (121,304)                       -      (1,178,378) 

Total accumulated depreciation      (3,307,061)     (271,394)                       -        (3,578,455) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net       3,244,082        (12,329)                       -         3,231,753 

Business activities capital assets, net $     3,311,734 $   (12,329) $        (67,652)  $    3,231,753 



 

 43

 
5. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City as follows: 
 

General government   $    376,532 
Public Safety  192,596 
Public works  238,620 
Recreation and social services       414,290 
Economic and community development           11,910 
Total depreciation expense – governmental activities  $1,233,949 
   
Business- type activities   

Sanitation  92,635 
Stormwater       178,759 

Total depreciation expense – business- type activities  $   271,394 
 
6. LONG-TERM DEBT 

 
Miami-Dade County Loan Payable 
 
During fiscal year 2003, Miami Dade County (the “County”) commenced a canal dredging project 
which was to be paid by various municipalities based on a local match responsibility allocation. 
During FY 2005, the County updated its cost estimates and the City’s responsibility was 
determined to be $414,578. On December 20, 2005, the City executed an interlocal agreement 
with Miami Dade County for the repayment of this debt. Under the terms of this agreement, the  
note will be repaid by the City in ten annual payments of $41,458 plus interest, commencing 
December 20, 2006 and ending with a final payment on December 20, 2015. The note bears 
interest at a variable rate. At September 30, 2015, the rate was 0.39% and the outstanding 
balance was $41,456. 
 
Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue Note-Series 2015 
 
On February 27, 2015, the City issued the Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue Note Series 
2015 in an amount of $7,554,000 with SunTrust Bank. The proceeds were used as follows: 
$1,986,733 was used to refund the $2,435,812 Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue Note 
Series 2010 with SunTrust Bank, and $5,567,267 was used to fund the construction of a new 
aquatic facility. The refunding note has a fixed interest rate of 3.07% and matures on February 1, 
2030. The refunding note is payable solely from and secured by the City’s Public Service Tax 
Revenues and Franchise Fee Revenues. The City achieved a cash flow difference and an 
economic gain of approximately $67,719 as a result of the refunding. The balance at September 
30, 2015 was $7,366,000. 
 
Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Note-Series 2010 
 
On November 29, 2010, the City issued the Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Note Series 2010 in 
an amount of $2,610,000 with Branch Banking and Trust (BB&T). The proceeds were used to 
refund the $5,000,000 of General Obligation Bonds, Series 1997. The refunding note has a fixed 
interest rate of 2.35% and matures on February 1, 2018. The refunding note is payable solely 
from and secured by the City’s ½ cent sales tax revenues. The City achieved a cash flow 
difference and an economic gain of approximately $327,000 as a result of the refunding. The 
balance at September 30, 2015 was $1,052,140. 
 
 
 



 

 44

6. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 
Debt service requirements to maturity for the fiscal year ending September 30 are summarized as 
follows: 

  Series 2015 Capital 
Improvement Refunding 

Note 
 

Series 2010 Sales Tax 
Revenue Refunding  

Note 
 

 
 

Total 

 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest 
2016 396,000 223,250 342,504 20,701 738,504 243,951 
2017 424,000 210,771 350,649 12,556 774,649 223,327 
2018 437,000 197,662 358,987 4,218 795,987 201,880 
2019 450,000 184,139 - - 450,000 184,139 
2020 465,000 170,216 - - 465,000 170,216 

 2021-2025 2,547,000 626,372 - - 2,547,000 626,372 
 2026-2030 2,647,000 207,241                 -              -      2,647,000      207,241 
Total, net $7,366,000 $1,819,651 $1,052,140 $37,475 $8,418,140  $ 1,857,126 

 
At September 30, 2015 and for the period then ended, the City had complied with the provisions 
of its bond indenture agreements. 

 
Capital Leases 

 
The City has entered into a lease agreement, with a local financial institution, as lessee for 
financing the acquisition of machinery and equipment for city-wide use. On April 30, 2014, the 
City executed a fifteen year Master Equipment Lease Purchase agreement with Green Campus 
Partners, LLC for a city-wide energy conservation project. These lease agreements qualify as a 
capital lease for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of 
its future minimum lease payments as of the inception date.  The gross amount of equipment 
leased and capitalized under these leases was approximately $3,141,919.  
 
Capital Leases 
 
The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease 
payments as of September 30, 2015, were as follows: 
 

Year ending   
September 30,   

2016     347,064 
2017  350,705 
2018 
2019 
2020 

 354,453  
130,327
134,305  

2021-31      1,551,116
Total minimum lease payments  2,867,970 
Less: amount representing interest  
  Interest at 1.54% to 3.615% APR      (596,067) 
Present value of minimum   
  Lease payments  $  2,271,903 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 45

6. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 
Capital Leases (continued) 
 
Capital assets acquired through the issuance of capital leases are as follows: 

 
 Governmental 
 Activities 
Machinery and equipment 2,671,227 
Less: Accumulated depreciation  (527,062) 
 $2,144,165 

 
  

Business 
Type 

 Activities 
Machinery and equipment  $ 470,692 
Less: Accumulated depreciation        (94,140) 
 
 

$ 376,552 

Long-term debt activity for the year ended September 30, 2015 was as follows: 
 

 October 1,   September 30, Due within 
 2014 Additions Reductions 2015 One Year 
Governmental Activities      
Bonds and notes payable:      
  Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Note        1,386,690                     -         (334,549)           1,052,140         342,504 
  2015-Capital Improvement Refunding Note  -    7,554,000    (188,000)           7,366,000  396,000 
  2010-Capital Improvement Refunding Note  2,027,471                     -   (2,027,471)                          -      - 
  Capital leases         2,131,941        19,731         (157,702)     1,993,970        188,143  
Total bonds and notes payable        5,546,102    7,573,731      (2,707,722)       10,412,110        926,647 
      
Other liabilities:      
  Compensated absences         1,521,412      551,855     (682,508)         1,390,760        918,361 
Governmental activity long-term liabilities $       7,067,514 $ 8,125,586 $(3,390,230) $      11,802,870 $   1,845,008 
      
Business-type activities      
Bonds and notes payable:      
  Capital leases       399,125 -    (112,965)       286,160      93,922 
  Note payable Miami-Dade County               82,914                   -      (41,458)              41,456           41,456 

Total bonds and notes payable             482,039                   -     (154,423)             327,616         135,378 
Other liabilities:     
  Compensated absences            145,702         88,714     (115,450)             118,966          74,296 
Business-type activities Long-term liabilities $         627,741 $      88,714  $  (269,873) $       446,582 $     209,674 
   
7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS 
 

Interfund balances for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015 are as follows: 
 

                                Interfund 
Receivable 

Interfund 
Payable 

    

  
General $ 309,265      $          -    
Stormwater fund 
Road and transportation     

- 248,928 
29,138

 

Elderly Services              -         31,199   
 $ 309,265     $309,265  
  

 
 
 



 

 46

7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (CONTINUED) 
 
The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from the time lag between the dates that 
(1) interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) 
transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made. 
 
Interfund transfers for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015 are as follows: 
 
                                Transfers 

In** 
Transfers 

Out** 
    

General $              -  $1,060,244   
Elderly Services 127,460                 -    
Debt Service     932,784                -  
 $ 1,060,244  $1,060,244  

 
**Transfers in/out during the fiscal year are as follows: 

 
• Operating subsidies from the General fund of $127,460 to the Elderly Services Center 

and $932,784 in transfers to the Debt Service Fund to cover debt service payments.  
 
 8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS 
 

(1) Plan Description 
 

The City contributes to two single employer defined benefit pension plans: General Employees’ 
Plan and the Police and Firefighters’ Plan.  Each plan provides retirement, disability, and death 
benefits. The Pension Boards’ of each retirement plan are authorized to establish and amend 
benefit provisions.  Each plan issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information for that plan.  Those reports may be obtained 
by writing the City of Miami Springs, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 33166. 

 
(2) Contributions 

 
General Employees 
 

The pension board establishes the required employee contribution and the City is required to 
contribute the amount in excess of employee contributions to cover the annual pension cost.  City 
employee members are required to contribute 5% of their annual covered salary with the City 
contributing any additional amount up to 15%, when the annual contribution is greater than 15% 
of payroll, the amount over 15% is shared equally by the City and the members. Annual 
contributions are actuarially determined as specified by the Retirement Ordinance as of October 
1st. For the year ended September 30, 2015, the average active employee contribution rate was 
9.12 percent of annual pay, and the City's average contribution rate was 13.62 percent of annual 
payroll.  

 
Police and Firefighters 
 

This plan contains as “cost-sharing mechanism” in which the regular member contribution rate for 
both bargaining unit employees and non-bargaining unit managerial employees in that capacity 
after September 27, 1993 is 9% of earnings.  If the combined City and Member contributions 
required for a year are less than 14% of covered payroll, the difference under 14% shall be 
rounded to the nearest .1% of budgeted payroll.  The resulting difference shall be divided in two, 
with plan members reducing their contribution rates by half the difference, and the City reducing 
its contribution by the remaining half for that fiscal year.  However, if the combined City and 
member contributions for any one fiscal year exceed 18% of the budgeted payroll for police 
officers, the excess rate over 18% will be divided by two with plan members paying half of the  
 



 

 47

8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 
 
Police and Firefighters (continued) 
 
excess and the City paying the other half for that fiscal year.  Annual contributions are actuarially 
determined as specified by the Retirement Ordinance as of October 1st.  
 
Effective October 1, 2014, the City negotiated with the Fraternal Order of Police (FOP) a change 
to the employee contributions that would cap employee contributions at 16.0% for FY 2015 and 
for FY 2016, and at 15.5% of covered payroll pay beginning in fiscal year 2017. Beginning in FY 
2018, contributions would revert back to the “cost-sharing mechanism” described above. 
 
For the year ended September 30, 2015, the average active employee contribution rate was 
15.50 percent of annual pay, and the City's average contribution rate was 30.51 percent of annual 
payroll.  
 
(3) Benefits 
 

General Employees 
 

The General Employees’ Plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Retirement 
benefits for general employees are calculated as 1.75 percent of the employee's average highest 
compensation over any 5 years of credited service out of the last 10 years prior to termination or 
retirement times the employee's years of service.  General employees may retire on the first day 
of the month coincident with or next following the earlier of: (1) age 62 and 5 years of credited 
service, or (2) when the age plus credited service equals 75 percent. General employees may 
retire early at age 55 and 10 years of credited service. All employees are eligible for non-duty 
disability benefits after 10 years of service and for duty-related disability benefits upon hire. 
Disability retirement benefits are determined in the same manner as retirement benefits but are 
payable immediately without an actuarial reduction. Death benefits are available to Members with 
10 or more years of credited service, the Beneficiary will receive the member’s accrued Normal 
Retirement Benefit. An employee who leaves City service may withdraw his or her contributions 
plus any accumulated interest. 

                  Employees covered by benefit terms.  

At September 30, 2014, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:  

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits        81 

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits         7 

Active employees       50 

      138 
  Police & Firefighters 

 
The Police & Firefighters Plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Retirement 
benefits for Police employees hired before October 12, 2014 are frozen at 3.5 percent of Average 
Monthly Earnings (AME) as of October 12, 2014. Benefit accruals on or after October 12, 2014 
are 3.50 percent of AME  for each year of credited service up to 20 years and 3 percent of AME 
for each year thereafter. The maximum benefit is 85% of AME. Members hired on or after 
October 12, 2014 receive a benefit of 2.5 percent of AME per year of credited service. The 
maximum benefit is 70% of AME. The minimum benefit is 2 percent per year of service. Members 
within 3 years of normal retirement eligibility on October 12, 2014 continue to accrue benefits at 
3.5 percent of AME with no cap. Police employees hired before October 12, 2014, may retire on 
the first day of the month coincident with or next following the earlier of: (1) age 55 and 10 years  



 

 48

8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 
 
Police and Firefighters (continued) 
 
of credited service, or (2) 20 years of credited service regardless of age. Police employees hired 
after October 12, 2014, may retire on the first day of the month coincident with or next following 
the earlier of: (1) age 55 and 10 years of credited service, or (2) age 52 and 25 years of credited 
service. Police employees may retire early at age 50 and 10 years of credited service. Police 
employees are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service and for duty-
related disability benefits upon hire. Disability retirement benefits are determined in the same 
manner as retirement benefits but are payable immediately without an actuarial reduction. Death 
benefits are available to Members who die as a direct result of an occurrence arising in the line of 
duty to the City regardless of credited service. An employee who leaves City service may 
withdraw his or her contributions, plus any accumulated interest. 

      Employees covered by benefit terms.  

At September 30, 2014, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:  

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits        45 

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits         3 

Active employees       29 

       77 
 Net Pension Liability 

The City's net pension liability was measured as of September 30. 2014, and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
that date. 

General Employees 

Actuarial assumptions  

The total pension liability in the September 30, 2014 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:  

Inflation 3.0 percent 

Salary increases 4 to 8% percent, depending on service, 
including inflation 

Investment rate of return 7.5 percent 

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Participant Mortality Table for 
Males or Females, with mortality improvement projected to all future years after 2000 using Scale 
AA. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the September 30, 2014 valuation were based on the results 
of an actuarial experience study for the period October 1, 2013–September 30, 2014. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return  



 

 49

8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 

General Employees (continued) 

Actuarial assumptions (continued) 

(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return 
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and 
by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of 
return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:  

Asset Class Target Allocation 
Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return 

Domestic equity 50% 7.95% 

International equity 10 8.0 

Fixed income 32.5 2.7 

Real estate 7.5 6.0 

Cash    0 0.0 

Total 100%  

Discount rate.  

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50 percent. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be 
made at the current contribution rate and that City contributions will be made at rates equal to the 
difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the employee rate. Based on 
those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to 
make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, 
the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (7.50%) was applied to all 
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 50

8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 

General Employees (continued) 

Changes in the Net Pension Liability  

Increase (Decrease) 

Total 
Pension 

Plan Fiduciary 
Net 

Net 
Pension 

Liability Position Liability 

(a) (b) (a) - (b) 

Balances at 09/30/14 $17,252,746 $16,050,579 $1,202,167

Changes for the year: 

    Service cost 318,230  318,230

    Interest 1,281,464  1,281,464

    Differences between expected and 
actual experience 

(120,753)  (120,753)

    Contributions—employer  366,204 (366,204)

    Contributions—employee  188,555 (188,555)

    Net investment income  1,903,591 (1,903,591)

    Benefit payments, including refunds 
of employee contributions 

(908,927) (908,927) –

    Administrative expense  (76,422) 76,422

    Other changes       (60,675)   60,675

        Net changes 509,339 1,412,326 (902,987)

Balances at 9/30/15 $17,762,085 $17,462,905 $299,180
 
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of  
the total pension liability……………………………………………..98.32% 
 
Covered employee payroll………………………………………….$3,369,071 
 
Net pension liability as a percentage of covered 
employee payroll……………………………………………………… 8.88% 

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate.  

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 
7.50 percent, as well as what the City's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.50 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.50 
percent) than the current rate:  

 



 

 51

8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 

General Employees (continued) 

Current 1% 

1% Decrease Discount Increase 

(6.50%) Rate (7.50%) (8.50%) 

City's net pension liability $2,018,412 $299,180 $(1,161,773) 

Pension plan fiduciary net position.  

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately 
issued financial report.  

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions  

For the year ended September 30, 2015, the City recognized pension expense of $112,103. At 
September 30, 2015, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources:  

Deferred 
Outflows 

Deferred 
Inflows of 

of Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and actual 
experience 

$             -         $74,310 

Changes of assumptions - – 

Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan investments 

              -  574,576 

    Total $             - $648,886 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:  

Year ended 9/30: 
 

2016                                                   $(190,087) 

2017                                                    (171,511) 

2018                                                   (143,644) 

2019                                                  (143,644) 

2020                                                           - 

Thereafter 
Total                         

                                                           - 
                                                          $(648,886) 

  



 

 52

 
8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Police & Firefighters 

Actuarial assumptions  

The total pension liability in the September 30, 2014 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:  

Inflation 3.0 percent 

Salary increases 4 to 10% percent, depending on service, 
including inflation 

Investment rate of return 7.5 percent 

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Participant Mortality Table for 
Males or Females, with mortality improvement projected to all future years after 2000 using Scale 
AA.  

The actuarial assumptions used in the September 30, 2014 valuation were based on the results 
of an actuarial experience study for the period October 1, 2013–September 30, 2014. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return 
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and 
by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of 
return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:  

Asset Class Target Allocation 
Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return 

Domestic equity 50% 7.95% 

International equity 10 8.0 

Fixed income 32.5 2.7 

Real estate 7.5 6.0 

Cash   0 0.0 

Total 100%  

Discount rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50 percent. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be 
made at the current contribution rate and that City contributions will be made at rates equal to the 
difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the employee rate. Based on 
those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to 
make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees.  



 

 53

8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Police & Firefighters (continued) 

Discount rate (contniued)  

Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (7.50%) was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.  

Changes in the Net Pension Liability  

Increase (Decrease) 

Total 
Pension 

Plan Fiduciary 
Net 

Net 
Pension 

Liability Position Liability 

(a) (b) (a) - (b) 

Balances at 09/30/14 $29,867,171 $25,053,469 $4,813,702

Changes for the year: 

     Service cost 606,975  606,975

     Interest 
    Changes in benefit terms 

2,216,416
(614,240)

 2,216,416
(614,240)

    Differences between expected and 
actual experience 

(90,536)  (90,536)

    Contributions—employer (from city) 
    Contributions-employer(from state)     

 633,156 
112,118 

(633,156)
(112,118)

    Contributions—employee  336,297 (336,297)

    Net investment income  2,968,350 (2,968,350)

    Benefit payments, including refunds 
of employee contributions 

  (1,367,520) (1,367,520) –

    Administrative expense  (110,599) 110,599

    Other changes  (101,254)                  -   (101,254)

        Net changes         649,841 2,571,802 (1,921,961)

Balances at 9/30/15 $30,517,012 $27,625,271 $2,891,741
 
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of  
the total pension liability……………………………………………..90.52% 
 
Covered employee payroll………………………………………….$3,100,575 
 
Net pension liability as a percentage of covered 
employee payroll……………………………………………………… 93.26% 

 



 

 54

8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 

General Employees (continued) 

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate.  

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 
7.50 percent, as well as what the City’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.50 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.50 
percent) than the current rate:  

 

Current 1% 

1% Decrease Discount Increase 

(6.50%) Rate (7.50%) (8.50%) 

City’s net pension liability $5,961,121 $2,891,741 $312,473 

Pension plan fiduciary net position.  

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately 
issued financial report.  

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions  

For the year ended September 30, 2015, the City recognized pension expense of $(236,315). At 
September 30, 2015, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources:  

Deferred 
Outflows 

Deferred 
Inflows of 

of Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and actual 
experience 

$             -         $ 57,004 

Changes of assumptions - – 

Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan investments 

              -  883,368 

    Total $             - $940,372 

 

 

 

 



 

 55

8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 

General Employees (continued) 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions (continued) 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:  

Year ended 9/30: 

2016 $(254,374) 

2017 (244,314) 

2018 (220,842) 

2019 (220,842) 

2020 - 

Thereafter 
Total                                        

                - 
                                                $(940,372) 

  
(5)   DROP Plan 

 
On October 8, 2001, the General Employees Retirement Plan adopted a Deferred Retirement 
Option Plan (“DROP”) for participants who are eligible to receive normal retirement.  Eligible 
members may participate by applying to the Board. 
 
On February 9, 1998, the Police and Firefighters Pension Plan adopted a DROP for 
participants who are eligible to receive normal retirement and have either attained age 55  
with ten years of continuous service, or have completed 25 years of service.  Eligible 
members may participate by applying to the Board. 

 
For Police & Firefighters’, eligibility to participate shall be forfeited if not exercised within the 
first 29 years of service.  However, participation will be permitted for those members with 
more than 27 years of service as of January 1, 1998. 
 
Upon a member’s election to participate in the DROP, that member shall cease to be a 
member his or her respective Plan and shall be precluded from any additional benefits under 
the Plan; accordingly, that member shall be considered retired. 
 
Monthly retirement benefits that would have been payable had the member retired and 
elected to receive monthly pension payments will be paid into the DROP and credited to the 
retired member.  Payments into the DROP are made monthly for the period the retired 
member participates in the DROP, up to a maximum of 60 months. 
 
Payments into the DROP will earn the same return as earned by the remainder of the Plan 
assets. 
 
Upon termination of employment, participants in the DROP have the option of receiving the 
balance of their account either in a lump sum distribution or in any other form of payment 
selected by the participant, approved by the Board and conforming to applicable laws.  
 



 

 56

8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 

General Employees (continued) 

 (6)  Defined Contribution Plan 
 

The City of Miami Springs 401(a) Money Purchase Plan is a defined contribution plan 
established by the City to provide benefits at retirement for certain employees of upper 
management.  At September 30, 2015, there were three plan members, the City Manager, 
the Police Chief, and the Assistant City Manager/Finance Director.  The City is required to 
contribute on behalf of each participant 14.89% of earnings for the plan year.  Participants 
are not permitted to make contributions.  City contributions fully vest in the year they are 
contributed.  Plan provisions and contribution requirements are established and may be 
amended by the City Council. 
 
The plan assets are administered by ICMA Retirement Corp.  Participants are mailed 
quarterly statements or can obtain daily account balances through the Internet.  The City 
does not exercise any control over the plan assets.  Contributions were approximately 
$51,420 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015. 
 

9. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions and natural disasters for which the City carries commercial 
insurance.  There have been no reductions in insurance coverage from coverages in the prior 
year and there have been no claims settled which have exceeded insurance coverage for each of 
the past three years. 

 
Liability Insurance 
 
The public liability program is designed to cover all public liability type claims incurred, subject to 
the limitation established by the State of Florida Waiver of Sovereign Immunity Act.  Insurance 
coverage is primarily provided by the Florida Municipal Liability Insurance Program supplemented 
by other policies and outside carriers.  The City's deductible portion of liability claims and 
premiums paid to insurers are charged to the funds as incurred. 
 
Workmen’s Compensation 

 
The City participated in Miami Dade County’s self insured workmen’s compensation program until 
June 30, 2012 at which time the City became fully insured by the Florida League of Cities. 
Premiums are billed quarterly for new claims, the City is separately responsible for future costs of 
those claims that were still open as of the turnover date with our prior insurer. 

 
10. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS  
 

Plan Description. City of Miami Springs (“the City”) administers a single-employer defined benefit 
healthcare plan (“the Plan”) that provides postretirement medical and dental coverage to retirees 
as well as their eligible spouses and dependents. Benefits are provided through the City’s group 
health insurance plan. The Plan does not issue a publicly available financial report. 
 
Eligibility: Any employee of the City of Miami Springs who satisfies the Vesting, Disability, Early or 
Normal Retirement provisions of the applicable Retirement Plans may be eligible for certain post-
employment benefits. Following presents the eligibility requirements for retirement under the 
City's three Retirement Plans: Police and Firemen Pension Plan, General Employees Pension 
Plan and General Employees 401(a).  
 



 

 57

10. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (CONTINUED) 
 
Vesting retirement: General Employees: Members become fully vested after 5 years of credited 
service. Police Officers: Members become fully vested after 5 years of credited service. However, 
with respect to all groups, there are no OPEB benefits available after termination of employment, 
unless employee satisfies eligibility requirements for any other retirement benefits listed below. 
 
Disability retirement: General Employees: Members are eligible for a non-duty disability pension 
after 10 years of creditable service. For duty disability, there is no service credit requirement. 
Police Officers: Members are eligible for a non-duty disability pension after 10 years of creditable 
service. For duty disability, there is no service credit requirement. 
 
Early retirement: General Employees: The attainment of age 55 with 10 years of creditable 
service. Police Officers: The attainment of age 50 with 10 years of creditable service. 
 
Normal retirement: General Employees: The earliest of the attainment of age of 62 with 5 years of 
creditable service or when age plus service equals 75 years. Police Officers: The earliest of the 
attainment of age of 55 with 10 years of 20 years of service regardless of age. 
 
DROP retirement: General Employees and Police Officers: The Deferred Retirement Option 
Program (DROP) is available to Members of Pension Plans at the attainment of the applicable 
Normal Retirement Age. While in DROP, participants receive coverage as active employees with 
eligibility for OPEB immediately after actual retirement. 
 
DC Plan participants: There are no age or service requirements that must be met to "retire" under 
the provisions of the Defined Contribution (DC) Plan. However, to be eligible for OPEBs 
employees must meet requirements applicable to similarly situated participants of the Pension 
Plan. The post-employment benefits include (a) continued coverage for the retiree and dependent 
in the Medical/Prescription, (b) continued coverage under the Dental Plan and (c) continued 
coverage under the Vision Plan. 
 
Health-Related Benefits: Eligible retirees may choose among the same Medical Plan options 
available for active employees of the City. Dependents of retirees may be covered at the retirees' 
option the same as dependents of active employees. Prescription Drug coverage is automatically 
extended to retirees and their dependents who continue coverage under any one of the Medical 
Plan options. Covered retirees and their dependents are subject to all the same Medical and 
Prescription Drugs benefits and rules for coverage as are active employees. Retirees and their 
dependents who attain age 65 are not required to enroll in Part B under Medicare in order to 
remain covered under the program. The Plan pays as secondary only for those actually enrolled 
in Parts A and B. 
 
Continued coverage in the City's Dental and Vision Plans is available to all retirees and their 
dependents under the same terms as active employees. 
 
Results presented in this report are based on the healthcare plan design in effect as of October 1, 
2015. 
 
Retiree Contributions for Medical/Prescription Benefits:  All retirees must pay the required 
premium presented below in order to continue coverage for themselves and/or their dependents 
after retirement. The stated policy is that premium contribution required from retirees is equal to 
the blended group rate.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 58

10. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (CONTINUED) 
 
The following chart presents the current (October 1, 2015) premium contributions required to be 
paid by retirees for continued coverage. 
 

  
Premiums Paid by Retirees* as of October 1, 2015 

Plan Retiree Only Retiree and Spouse 
HMO $609.33 $1,353.71 
POS $536.29 $1,190.56 

 
*Regardless of Medicare Eligibility 

 
Survivorship Benefits: No benefit (other than COBRA coverage) is offered to surviving 
dependents of either active employees or retirees. 
 
Dental and Vision Plans: Dental and vision benefits for retirees and their dependents are 
voluntary and fully paid by the employee. Consequently, dental and vision benefits are not 
Employer-provided in any sense and are not considered as other post-employment benefits for 
the purposes of GASB Statement No. 45. 
 
COBRA benefits:  Former employees, retirees and dependents may be eligible for extended 
benefits under COBRA, regardless of the terms of the employer's other post-employment 
benefits. COBRA benefits are not considered as other post- employment benefits for the 
purposes of GASB Statement No. 43 and 45. 
 
Life insurance: General Employee retirees may also continue after retirement their participation in 
the Employer-sponsored life insurance policy. The benefit is 100% of salary until age 65, 
whereupon the policy drops to $ 5,000. There is no cost to retiree. 
 
Termination and amendment:  The post-employment benefits are extended to retirees and 
continued at the discretion of the City, which reserves the right (subject to State Statute and any 
collective bargaining agreements) to change or terminate benefits and to change contributions 
required from retirees in the future as circumstances change. 
 
For fiscal year 2015, the City contributed $93,582 to the plan. 

The postretirement medical and dental benefits are currently funded on a pay-as-you go basis 
(i.e., City funds on a cash basis as benefits are paid). No assets have been segregated and 
restricted to provide postretirement benefits. 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The City’s annual other postemployment 
benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of 
the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of  

GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is 
projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or 
funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 59

10. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (CONTINUED 
 
The City’s annual OPEB cost for the fiscal year ended 2015, the seventh year of implementation 
of GASB Statement 45, and the related information for each plan are as follows: 

Annual required contribution                                         $200,273 
                              Interest on net OPEB obligation                                     27,577 
                              Adjustment to annual required contribution                  (32,830) 
                             Annual OPEB cost                                                      195,020 
                              Contributions made                                                          93,582 
                                Increase in net OPEB obligation                                      101,438 

Net OPEB obligation—beginning of year                      787,919 
Net OPEB obligation—end of year         $889,357 

 
 

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and 
the net OPEB obligation for fiscal year 2015 were as follows: 

Annual      Percentage of 
Fiscal Year OPEB Annual OPEB Net OPEB 

Ended                 Cost    Cost Contributed          Obligation 
                                  09/30/2013        $190,687            36.29%                $631,641 
                            09/30/2014        $225,465            30.69%                $787,919 
                            09/30/2015        $195,020            47.99%                $889,357 
                          

Funded Status and Funding Progress. The schedule below shows the balance of the actuarial 
accrued liability (AAL), all of which was unfunded as of September 30, 2015. 

 
          UAAL 
    Actuarial     as a 

  Actuarial  Accrued     Percentage 
  Value  Liability Unfunded    of 
Actuarial  of  (AAL) - AAL Funded Covered  Covered 
Valuation  Assets  Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll  Payroll 

Date  (a)  (b) (a-b) (a/b) (c)  (a-b)/c 
10/1/2009   $                0   $1,493,954  $1,493,954 0%  $6,283,252  23.78% 
10/1/2011   $                0   $1,823,433  $1,823,433 0%  $7,087,665  25.73% 
10/1/2013   $                0   $1,883,318  $1,883,318 0%  $6,699,106  28.11% 

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about 
the probability of events in the future. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the 
plan and the annual required contributions by the City are subject to continual revision as 
actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the 
future.  
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits are based on the substantive 
plan (the Plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of 
benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing benefit costs between the City and 
the plan members to that point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ 
methods and assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued  
 



 

 60

 
10. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (CONTINUED)  

 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions (continued). 
 
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. The following summarizes other significant methods 
and assumptions used in valuing the AAL and benefits under the plan. 

 
Actuarial valuation date   10/01/2013 
Amortization method   Level percent, closed 
Remaining amortization period  23 years 
 
Actuarial assumptions: 
Discount rate    3.50% 
Payroll growth assumption  3.50% 
Mortality table    1983 Group Annuity Mortality 
Inflation rate    3.0% 
Investment return   3.5% 
Projected salary increases-general          4% to 8% based on service 
Projected salary increases-police            5% to 10% based on service 
Heathcare cost trend rate: 
 

Year of increase Medical/Rx 
2014 27.0% 
2015 7.5% 
2016 7.0% 
2017 6.5% 
2018 6.0% 
Thereafter 5.0%  

 
Further, the valuation assumes that the City will continue to fund the liability on a pay-as-you-
go basis and that the City’s policy is that its per-capita contribution for retiree benefits will 
remain as the 2015 level. As a result, the retiree contributions will be increased to the extent 
necessary so that they are sufficient to provide for the difference between the gross costs and 
the fixed City contributions. 

 
11.         CURTISS MANSION RESTORATION AND REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

The Curtiss Mansion (the Mansion) is a two story deltoid-shaped and multi-massed example of 
Pueblo-Mission Revival architecture. Built in 1925 by Glen Curtiss as his private residence, the 
Mansion was originally called “Dar-en-aha,” meaning the house of contentment. The Mansion 
was designated as a historic site in 1987 and was placed on the National Register of Historic 
sites in 2001.  

The City executed a management and operation agreement for the Mansion with Curtiss 
Mansion, Inc. (CMI), a Florida non-profit corporation, in September 2000. Under this agreement, 
CMI is responsible for all fundraising activities necessary to fund the necessary renovations to the 
Mansion.  These funds would be raised from grants and outside parties.  Renovations to the 
Mansion began in 2009 and were completed in December 2012.  

On June 8, 2012, the City entered into a sixty-five year ground lease with Miami Springs 
Landlord, LLC (MSL, LLC) for the Mansion property.  MSL, LLC prepaid the entire term of the 
lease for $1.   A nineteen year master lease agreement was then entered into between MSL, LLC  



 

 61

11.         CURTISS MANSION RESTORATION AND REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT (CONTINUED) 

and Miami Springs Master Tenant, LLC (MSMT, LLC) on June 8, 2012.  MSL, LLC intends to 
rehabilitate the Mansion in a manner that qualifies for the historic rehabilitation tax credit allowed  

for qualified rehabilitation expenditures incurred in connection with the “certified rehabilitation” of 
a “certified historic structure” (the “Historic Tax Credits”) pursuant to Section 47 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time (the “Code”).  MSMT, LLC has been 
formed to lease the Mansion from the MSL, LLC pursuant to the terms of the lease.  MSL, LLC 
and MSMT, LLC have executed or will execute a certain Credit Pass-Through Agreement (the 
“Credit Pass-Through Agreement”) of even date herewith pursuant to which the MSL, LLC will 
elect Section 50 of the Code to pass-through to the MSMT, LLC the Historic Tax Credits, to which 
MSL, LLC is otherwise entitled as a result of the rehabilitation of the Mansion.   As of September 
30, 2013, approximately $746,000 tax credit contributions had been received by MSMT, LLC. 

A lease for Curtiss Mansion operations between MSMT, LLC and CMI was entered into in June 8, 
2012.  The lease shall be for a period of five years.  The lease may be subject to renewal upon 
expiration on such terms and conditions as are mutually agreeable to the parties at that time. 

On June 8, 2012, an operating agreement was entered into between MSL, LLC, Miami Springs 
Properties, Inc. (a wholly owned subsidiary of the City and a blended component unit of the City) 
(MSPI) and MSMT, LLC.  The agreement states that the ground lease entered into between the 
City and MSL, LLC shall first be deemed a contribution of the Mansion by the City to MSPI and 
second a contribution of the Mansion by MSPI to MSL, LLC.   

In accordance with the ground lease and operating agreement, the City contributed the Mansion’s 
land and building with a book value of $4,555,133 to Miami Springs Properties, Inc. (a wholly 
owned subsidiary of the City and a blended component unit of the City) during the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 2012. The contribution was reported as an “Investment in MS Properties, 
Inc.” on the government-wide Statement of Net Position. 

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, the December 31, 2014 financial statements of 
MSPI were consolidated with the financial statements of MSL, LLC. MSPI and Subsidiary is 
reported as a blended component unit of the City thereby eliminating the investment in MS 
Properties, Inc. on the government-wide Statement of Net Position. 

 
12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 

Litigation 
 

Various suits and claims arising in the ordinary course of operations are pending against the City.  
While the ultimate effect of such litigation cannot be ascertained at this time, in the opinion of 
legal counsel, the City has sufficient insurance coverage to cover any claims and/or liabilities, 
which may arise from such action.  The effect of such losses would not materially affect the 
financial position of the City or the results of its operations. 
 
Tax-Exempt Bonds 
 
As discussed in Note 6-Long Term Debt, the City has issued tax-exempt bonds to fund capital 
projects and infrastructure. If the bonds were deemed to be taxable, then the City’s interest costs 
would markedly rise. The potential increase in interest costs would only be determinable at the 
time such debt was deemed taxable. The City does not, at this time, expect the tax-exempt status 
of the debt to change. 



 

 62

 
12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 

 
Historic Rehabilitation Tax Credit 
 
The City’s Historic Rehabilitation Tax Credits are contingent on its ability to maintain compliance 
with applicable sections of Section 47 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Failure 
to maintain compliance with applicable regulations or to correct noncompliance within a specified 
time period could result in recapture by the limited partners of previously taken tax credits plus 
interest. 
 
Grants 
 
Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by 
grantor agencies.  Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected may constitute a 
liability of the applicable funds.  In the opinion of management, future disallowances of grant 
expenditures, if any, would not have a material adverse effect on the City's financial condition. 
 
Operational Food and Beverage Agreement 
  
On October 26, 2010, the City re-awarded its agreement (the “Agreement”) with Miami Springs 
Country Club F&B, Inc. (the “Company”) which authorized the Company to be the exclusive 
operator of all food and beverage services at the Miami Springs Golf and Country Club. The term 
of the Agreement is for a five year period ending January 9, 2016, and is not subject to any option 
or automatic renewal. During the years that the City operated the food & beverage operation, the 
losses were significant. In an effort to reduce these losses, the City entered into this agreement 
which removes the risk of further losses to the City and transferred it to an outside private entity. 
 
Operating Leases 
 
The City leases equipment for its Golf and Country Club Fund under non-cancelable operating 
leases.  Total costs for such leases were $50,592 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015.   
 
The City also leases office equipment and office space under non-cancelable operating leases.  
Total costs for such leases were $32,076 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015. 
 
The future minimum lease payments are as follows: 
 

Year ending   
September 30,   

   
  
2016 
2017 
2018 
 

     $63,468 
    63,468 
    61,322 

 
Total   $ 188,258

 
 



 

 

 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

(OTHER THAN MD&A) 
 
 









 

 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
NOTE TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 
 
A. Budgetary Information 
  
The following procedures are used to establish the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 
 

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States. 

 
1. Prior to July 30 of each year, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed 

operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following October 1.  The operating budget 
includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing such expenditures. 

 
2. Public hearings are held to obtain taxpayer comments. 

 
3. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. 

 
4. The level of control at which expenditures may not exceed budget is at the departmental level.  

The City Council approves these levels by annual resolution.  The City Manager is authorized 
to transfer budgeted amounts within individual departments; any revisions that alter the total 
expenditures of any appropriation center within a fund must be approved by the City 
Commission. 

 
Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds.  Encumbrances (e.g., purchase orders, 
contracts) outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances and do not constitute 
expenditures or liabilities because commitments will be re-appropriated and honored during the 
subsequent year. The City legally adopts budgets for both major funds, the General fund and the Law 
Enforcement Trust fund. The City also adopts budgets for the Road and Transportation, Senior Center 
and Debt Service funds all of which are non-major governmental funds, as well as the business-type 
funds.  
 
Appropriations lapse at year end, except for grants and shared revenues from other governmental units 
which do not lapse at year-end and are only reported to the extent of revenues recognized, and 
expenditures incurred for the current year.  Individual amendments were not material in relation to the 
original adopted budget. 
 
The final budget includes budget transfers and supplemental appropriations, which have the effect of 
adjusting the original adopted budget.  General Fund supplemental appropriations amounted to $246,511 
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015 and consist primarily of the roll-forward of encumbrances 
from FY 2014, increases in transfers to other funds, and other miscellaneous appropriations for new 
equipment and citywide renovations. 
 
See Note 2 of the financial statements for an explanation of over expenditures. 

 
 

 
 

66 



 

 

 
 

 
 

COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 



 

 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 
 

Special Revenue Funds 
 

Special Revenue Funds account for revenues from revenue sources which by law are 
designated to finance particular functions or activities of government. 
 
Road and Transportation Fund – This fund is used to account for expenditures related 
to road and transportation improvements. 
 
Senior Center Fund - This fund is used to account for the financial management of 
programs funded under Title III of the Older Americans Act. 
 
Law Enforcement Trust Fund (LETF) is used to account for the resources 
accumulated from the sale of forfeited property as well as federal grants, all proceeds 
are to be used for law enforcement purposes only. 
 
 
Miami Springs Properties, Inc- This fund is a blended component unit related to the 
historic tax transaction.  

 
 
 
 













 

 

 
 

STATISTICAL SECTION 
(SUPPLEMENTAL DATA) 

 
 



CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
STATISTICAL SECTION 

 
This part of the City of Miami Spring’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed 
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note 
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial health. 
 
 
                                                       Contents                                                                     
Page 
 
Financial Trends  72--76 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s          
financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 
 
Revenue Capacity  77-80 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s most significant          
local revenue source, the property tax. 
 
Debt Capacity  81-85 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the affordability of the                
City’s current levels of outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in  
future. 
 
Demographic and Economic Information  86-87 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand      
the environment within which the City’s financial activities take place. 
 
Operating Information                                                                                                            88-90 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand 
how the information in the city’s financial report relates to the services the City provides 
and the activities it performs.                                                                   
 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the 
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant years. 









































 

 

 
 

COMPLIANCE SECTION 
 
 

 



 

 
 

91 

ACCOUNTANTS   ADVISORS�

 
 
 
Alberni Caballero & Fierman, LLP 
4649 Ponce de Leon Blvd 
Suite 404 
Coral Gables, FL 33146 
T: 305.662.7272 F: 305.662.4266 

  ACF-CPA.COM 
 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
 
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Miami Springs, Florida 
 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the City of Miami Springs, Florida (the “City”), as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 31, 2016.  

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

 



 

 
 

92 

 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

Alberni Caballero & Fierman, LLP 
Alberni Caballero & Fierman, LLP 
Coral Gables, Florida 
January 31, 2016 



 

 
 

93 

ACCOUNTANTS   ADVISORS�

 
 
Alberni Caballero & Fierman, LLP 
4649 Ponce de Leon Blvd 
Suite 404 
Coral Gables, FL 33146 
T: 305.662.7272 F: 305.662.4266 

  ACF-CPA.COM 
 

 
  

MANAGEMENT LETTER REQUIRED BY SECTION 10.550 OF THE RULES OF THE AUDITOR 
GENERAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA 

 
 
 
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Miami Springs, Florida 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Miami Springs, Florida (the “City”), 
as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, and have issued our report thereon dated January 
31, 2016. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.  

Other Reports and Schedule 
 
We have issued our Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards; and Independent Accountant’s Report on Compliance with the 
Requirements of Section 218.415 Florida Statutes in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor 
General of the State of Florida.  Disclosures in those reports, which are dated January 31, 2016, should be 
considered in conjunction with this management letter. 
 
Prior Audit Findings 
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective 
actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial 
audit report. There were no findings or recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report. 
 
Official Title and Legal Authority 
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal authority 
for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in this management 
letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. This information has been disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

94 

Financial Condition 
 
Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we apply appropriate 
procedures and report the results of our determination as to whether or not the City has met one or more of 
the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and identification of the specific condition(s) 
met. In connection with our audit, we determined that the City did not meet any of the conditions described in 
Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.  
 
Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.c. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial 
condition assessment procedures. It is management’s responsibility to monitor the City’s financial condition, 
and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by management and the 
review of financial information provided by same. 
 
Annual Financial Report 
 
Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, requires the we apply appropriate 
procedures and report the results of our determination as to whether the annual financial report for the City 
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, filed with the Florida Department of Financial Services 
pursuant to Section 218.32(1)(a), Florida Statutes, is in agreement with the annual financial audit report for 
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015. In connection with our audit, we determined that these two 
reports were in agreement.  
 
Other Matters  
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management letter any 
recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such 
recommendations. 
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address noncompliance with provisions 
of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred, that have an 
effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which warrants the attention of those charged 
with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such findings. 
 
Purpose of this Letter  
 
Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing Committee, 
members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor General, 
Federal and other granting agencies, the City Council and applicable management, and is not intended to be 
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 

Alberni Caballero & Fierman, LLP 
Alberni Caballero & Fierman, LLP 
Coral Gables, Florida 
January 31, 2016



95 
 

ACCOUNTANTS   ADVISORS�

 
Alberni Caballero & Fierman, LLP 
4649 Ponce de Leon Blvd 
Suite 404 
Coral Gables, FL 33146 
T: 305.662.7272 F: 305.662.4266 

  ACF-CPA.COM 
 

 
   
 

 
INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF 

SECTION 218.415 FLORIDA STATUTES IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER 10.550, RULES OF THE 
AUDITOR GENERAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA 

 
 
 

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Miami Springs, Florida 
 

We have examined City of Miami Springs, Florida’s (the “City”) compliance with the requirements of 
Section 218.415 Florida Statutes during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015. Management is 
responsible for the City's compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on the City's compliance based on our examination.   

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence 
about the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the City's compliance with 
specified requirements. 
 
In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements for the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2015. 
 
 

Alberni Caballero & Fierman, LLP 
Alberni Caballero & Fierman, LLP 
Coral Gables, Florida  
January 31, 2016 
 

 
 



 

 

1

ACCOUNTANTS   ADVISORS�

Alberni Caballero & Fierman, LLP 
4649 Ponce de Leon Blvd 
Suite 404 
Coral Gables, FL 33146 
T: 305.662.7272 F: 305.662.4266 

  ACF-CPA.COM 

 
 

 

January 31, 2016 

 

Honorable Mayor, City Council and City Manager 
City of Miami Springs, Florida 

 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Miami Springs, Florida (the “City”) for the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 2015. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our 
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain 
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our 
letter to you dated November 18, 2015. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the 
following information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting 
policies used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were 
adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2015.  However, the City did implement a 
new significant accounting standard GASB 68, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions; an amendment 
to GASB Statement No. 27”. We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a 
lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial 
statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and 
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most 
sensitive estimate affecting the financial statements was: 

Management’s estimate of the allowance for uncollectible accounts for accounts receivables is 
based on historical trends.  

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement 
users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements was: 

The disclosure of the deposits and investments in Note 3 to the financial statements.  

The disclosure of the Curtiss Mansion restoration and redevelopment project in Note 11 to the 
financial statements.  

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 

 

 

 



 2 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 
Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of 
audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each 
opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, 
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. 
We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation 
letter dated January 31, 2016. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting 
principle to the City’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed 
on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine 
that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other 
accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, 
with management each year prior to retention as the City’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the 
normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to Management’s Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison 
information, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. 
Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit 
the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

We were engaged to report on combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and budgetary 
comparison schedules, which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this 
supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and 
methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the 
information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and 
reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves. 

Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for the use of the City Council and management of the City of Miami Springs and 
is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 

Very truly yours, 

Alberni Caballero & Fierman, LLP 
Alberni Caballero & Fierman, LLP 
Coral Gables, Florida 
 













































 
 1 

 
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Monday, January 25, 2016 7:00 p.m. 

 
Council Chambers at City Hall 

201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 7:03 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
 
Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Bob Best 
Councilman Billy Bain 
Councilwoman Roslyn Buckner 
Councilman Jaime A. Petralanda 
 
City Manager Ronald K. Gorland 
Assistant City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso 
City Attorney Jan K. Seiden 
City Planner Chris Heid 
Building Official/Code Compliance Director Ulises Fernandez 
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria 
 
2. Invocation: Offered by Mayor Garcia 
 

Salute to the Flag: Students from All Angels’ Academy lead the audience in the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Salute to the Flag 

 
3. Awards & Presentations:  
 
 A) Presentation of Certificate of Recognition to Eric Richey for 27 Years of 
Advisory Board Member service 
 
Mayor Garcia presented Mr. Richey with a Certificate of Recognition for twenty-
seven years of service to the Parks and Parkways Advisory Board.  He also stated 
that Senator Rene Garcia and Representative Bryan Avila will be presenting him with 
a proclamation in the near future for his service as a teacher at Hialeah High School. 
 
 B) Proclamation presentation to “Pioneer” Betty Barnette Roper on her 90th 
Birthday 
 
Mrs. Roper was not available to accept the proclamation and will be rescheduled for 
another meeting. 
 

C) Yard of the Month Award for February 2016 – 581 La Baron Drive – Lionel 
and Alma Espinoza  



 
 2 

 
Mr. and Mrs. Espinosa were not present to receive the Certificate of Recognition for 
the yard of the month from Mayor Garcia. 

 
4. Open Forum:  
 
The following members of the public addressed the City Council:  Vicente Beltran, 247 N. 
Royal Poinciana, Pedro Lacret, 312 Payne Drive, Donna Hernandez, 769 Pinecrest Drive, 
Amanda Sheene, 620 Miller Drive, Charlie Hernandez, 769 Pinecrest Drive, Kahnee 
Rodriguez, no address provided. 

 
5. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) January 11, 2015 – Regular Meeting 

 
Councilman Best moved to approve the minutes.  Councilman Petralanda seconded 
the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor 
Garcia voting Yes. 

 
6. Reports from Boards & Commissions: None at this time. 

 
7. Public Hearings: None at this time. 
 
8. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted) 
  
 A) Recommendation by Golf that Council approve an increase to the City's 
current open purchase order with The Anderson’s, Inc., in an amount of $ 5,000, for micro 
granulated fertilizers for the greens at the Miami Springs Country Club as funds were 
budgeted in the FY15/16 Budget pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(g) of the City Code 
 
The City Manager read all items by title for the record. 
 
Vice Mayor Bain moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Councilman Best 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
9. Old Business:  
 

A) Appointments to Advisory Boards by the Mayor and Council Members 
 
There were no appointments at this time. 

 
B) Major Project Updates  
 
 1) Pool Progress; Report by Jorge Ferrer 

 
Jorge Ferrer gave a PowerPoint presentation on the status of the aquatic facility 
construction.  He indicated that the pool is on schedule and on budget.   
 
 



 
 3 

 2) Quiet Zone 
 
 3)   Westward Drive Bike Path 
 
 4)  Prince Field Tot Lot 

 
The City Manager requested that the item be pushed to the February 22nd Council 
meeting in order for staff to prepare the proper information to present to Council. 
 
Donna Hernandez, 769 Payne Drive, Benjamin Jarrell, 720 Swan Avenue, and Robert 
Sami 340 Payne Drive; addressed the Council. 
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Councilman Petralanda 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 

 5) City-wide ADA Sidewalk Ramps 
 
 6) Curtiss Mansion Parking Lot 
 
 7) FEMA Floodplain  

 
Ulises Fernandez, Building Official/Code Compliance Director, addressed the 
Council and advised them on the status of the City’s progress on lowering the flood 
insurance rate through the Community Rating System done by FEMA.  
 

 8) Canal Bank Restoration  
 
10. New Business:  
  
 A) Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs 
Amending The Current Schedule Of Charges For Building, Plumbing, Electrical, 
Mechanical And Other Related Permit Charges Or Fees; Effective Date 
 
Vice Mayor Bain moved to approve the Resolution.  Councilman Petralanda 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.   The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
 B) Request that Council approve a Site Plan for the construction of a 73,484 sq. 
ft., 127-room hotel, located in the Abraham Tract at 3449 NW 42 Avenue 
 
Vice Mayor Bain moved to approve staff’s recommendation as proposed with 
conditions.  Councilman Best seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call 
vote.   The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman 
Buckner, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
C) Request that Council gives direction to staff to clarify the future of certain election 
processes 



 
 4 

City Attorney Jan Seiden gave an oral presentation on the item. 
 
Vice Mayor Bain made a motion to direct staff to draft an Ordinance reflecting option 
#2 from the Agenda Memo.  Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion, which 
carried 5-0 on roll call vote.   The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman 
Best, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
 D) Request that Council consider a proposed amendment to Code Section 34-
17: Employee Disciplinary Action 
 
City Attorney Jan Seiden gave an oral presentation on the item. 
 
Vice Mayor Bain made a motion to direct staff to draft an Ordinance.  Councilman 
Petralanda seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.   The vote was 
as follows: Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman 
Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
 E) Request that Council consider restrictions on impervious coverings/surfaces 
in rear yard areas of residential homesites 
 
City Attorney Jan Seiden gave an oral presentation on the item. 
 
It was the general consensus of the Council to defer this item until the February 22nd 
Council meeting, so that the Planning Director and Building Official were present to 
further discuss the item. 
 
 F) Recommendation by Public Works that Council approve an expenditure in 
an amount not to exceed $172,900.00, to Mendoza Boulders, the lowest responsible 
quote after obtaining three written quotes (attached), for rock for Phase I - North 
Esplanade Canal Bank Restoration between North Royal Poinciana Blvd. and 
Westward Drive, as funds are being provided by the State of Florida, Department of 
Environmental Protection, Division of Water Restoration Assistance Grant on a cost 
reimbursement basis, pursuant to Section §31.11 (C)(2) of the City Code 
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the recommendation.  Vice Mayor Bain 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.   The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
 G) Request for funding by Sarah Vargas for the Great Tomato Festival in the 
amount of $1,230.00 
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the request.  Vice Mayor Bain seconded the 
motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.   The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor 
Garcia voting Yes. 
 
 H) Consideration of the Board of Parks and Parkways Recommendations for the 
Yard of the Month Awards for February, March, and April 2016 
 
 



 
 5 

Vice Mayor Bain moved to approve the recommendation.  Councilman Petralanda 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.   The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
 I) Request by Blessed Trinity for full closure of the circle on May 7, 2016 from 
5:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m. for the Christian Worship and Concert 
 
Vice Mayor Bain moved to approve the request.  Councilman Best seconded the 
motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.   The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor 
Garcia voting Yes. 

 
10.  Other Business:  
  
 A) Consideration of Canceling/Rescheduling the February 8, 2016 Council 
Meeting 
 
Vice Mayor Bain moved to keep February 8th Council as scheduled.  Councilman 
Petralanda seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.   The vote was 
as follows: Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman 
Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 

 11. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney  
 
The City Attorney had nothing to report at this time. 
 

B) City Manager 
 
City Manager Gorland had nothing to report at this time. 
  

C) City Council 
 
Councilwoman Buckner had nothing to report at this time. 
 
Councilman Petralanda had nothing to report at this time 
 
Vice Mayor Best had nothing to report at this time. 
 
Councilman Bain stated that the tax money that the taxpayers pay into to the State is paid 
out through different programs and it depends on what the municipalities request for it to 
go.   
 
Mayor Garcia had nothing to report at this time.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 6 

 
13. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 10:20 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
This 25th day of January, 2016. 
 
 
           
Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 
MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 



February 5 for January

General Fund Departments Cost Hours

Office of the City Clerk 3,176.55         23.53
Human Resources Department 1,113.75         8.25
Risk Management 589.95            4.37
Finance Department 236.25            1.75
Professional Services 263.25            1.95
Building,Zoning & Code Enforcement Department 684.45            5.07
Planning 1,036.80         7.68
Police Department 441.45            3.27
Public Works Department 546.75            4.05
Recreation Department 434.70            3.22
IT Department 0.00
Golf 364.50            2.70
Senior 0.00
General - Administrative Work 4,510.35         33.41
Sub-total - General Fund $13,398.75 99.25

Special Revenue, Trust & Agency Funds
Golf Course Operations 0.00
L.E.T.F. 0.00
Due from Pension Funds 0.00
Sub-total - Special Funds $0.00 0.00

GRAND TOTAL:  ALL FUNDS $13,398.75 99.25

The City of Miami Springs
     Summary of Monthly Attorney Invoice

Orshan, Lithman, Seiden, Ramos, Hatton & Huesmann, LLP



    

 
 
 

 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166-5259 
Phone: 305.805.5006 
Fax: 305.805.5028 

 

 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Garcia and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM:  Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, City Clerk  
 
DATE:  December 9, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: PENDING BOARD APPOINTMENTS 
 
************************************************************************************************************************************** 
The following appointments are pending: 

 NEW               ORIGINAL   LAST 
APPOINTMENT CURRENT  TERM  APPOINTMENT      APPOINTMENT 
COUNCILMEMBER  MEMBER     EXPIRES     DATE           DATE        
 
Board of Adjustment/Zoning and Planning Board   
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Juan Molina  04-30-2018 01-29-2015 11-09-2015 
Councilman Best   Bob Calvert  04-30-2018 01-28-2013 11-09-2015 
Bain Vice Mayor   Ernie Aloma  04-30-2016 04-13-2009 01-11-2011 
Councilwoman Buckner  Bill Tallman  04-30-2016 01-11-2010 05-14-2012 
Councilman Petralanda  Manuel Pérez-Vichot 04-30-2017 12-14-1998 11-09-2015 
Mayor Garcia   Alejandro J. Gonzalez 10-31-2017 12-03-2015 12-03-2015  
 
Architectural Review Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Marc Scavuzzo*  10-31-2016  08-27-2012 11-09-2015 
Councilman Best   Valentine Soler  10-31-2016  01-14-2013 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   Joe Valencia*  10-31-2016  02-27-2012 11-09-2015 
Councilwoman Buckner  Fredy Albiza*  10-31-2016  08-27-2012 11-09-2015 
Councilman Petralanda  Ana Paula Ibarra * 10-31-2016  10-10-2011 11-09-2015 
 
Code Enforcement Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Jorge Filgueira*  11-30-2017  08-27-2012 11-09-2015 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Walter Dworak  09-30-2016  11-14-2005 09-14-2010 
Councilman Best   Marlene B. Jiménez 09-30-2018  03-02-2005 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   John Bankston  09-30-2017  09-23-2002 11-09-2015  
Councilman Bain   Rhonda Calvert  09-30-2017  09-25-2006 11-09-2015  
Councilwoman Buckner Jacqueline Martinez Regueira 09-30-2018  06-09-2003 11-09-2015   
Councilman Petralanda  Robert (Bob) Williams 09-30-2016  03-10-2008 10-25-2010 
 
Code Review Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  VACANT  04-30-2018   
Councilman Best   Maria (Nuñez) Garrett 04-30-2017 05-08-2009 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   Arthur Freyre  04-30-2017 05-19-2009 05-09-2011 
Councilwoman Buckner  Dan Dorrego  04-30-2016 08-11-2003 05-24-2010 
Councilman Petralanda  Jana Armstrong  04-30-2016 06-11-2001 05-10-2010 
 
Disability Advisory Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  VACANT  12-31-2016  
Councilman Best   Catherine Stadnik 12-31-2016 12-14-1998 02-14-2011 
Vice Mayor Bain   Grace Bain  12-31-2016 01-13-2014 01-13-2014 
Councilwoman Buckner  Richard Barnes  12-31-2016 05-11-2009 01-24-2011 
Councilman Petralanda  Thomas W. Cannon 12-31-2016   
 
 



 
Ecology Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Wendy Anderson Booher*04-30-2018 01-12-2009 11-09-2015  
Councilman Best   Trina Aguila  04-30-2018 10-28-2013 11-09-2015   
Vice Mayor Bain   Carl Malek*  04-30-2017 11-22-2010 05-09-2011 
Councilwoman Buckner  Marielys Acosta  04-30-2016 09-09-2013 09-09-2013 
Councilman Petralanda  Michael Kobiakov 04-30-2016 08-12-2013 08-12-2013 
 
Education Advisory Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Alyssa C. Roelans 05-31-2017 02-17-2015 11-09-2015  
Councilman Best   Constantino Hernandez 05-31-2017 04-27-2015 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   Dr. Mara Zapata* 05-31-2017 06-13-2011 11-09-2015  
Councilwoman Buckner  Ilia Molina   05-31-2017 02-05-2015 11-09-2015  
Councilman Petralanda   Steve Owens  05-31-2017 05-13-2013 11-09-2015 
 
Golf and Country Club Advisory Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Michael Domínguez* 07-31-2017 04-12-2010 11-09-2015  
Councilman Best   Mark Safreed  07-30-2017 08-08-2005 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   George Heider  07-31-2017 08-13-2001 11-09-2015 
Councilwoman Buckner  Ken Amendola*  07-31-2017 10-10-2011 11-09-2015 
Councilman Petralanda  Art Rabade  07-31-2017 03-11-2013 11-09-2015 
 
Historic Preservation Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Sydney Garton  01-31-2016 11-08-1993 02-08-2010 
Councilman Best   Charles M. Hill  02-28-2018 03-08-2004 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   Yvonne Shonberger 02-28-2017 06-13-2005 09-10-2012 
Councilwoman Buckner  Dr. James Watson 02-28-2018 06-09-2014 11-09-2015 
Councilman Petralanda  Jo Ellen Phillips  01-31-2016 2-14-2013 08-26-2013 
 
Board of Parks & Parkways 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Eric Richey  04-30-2018 02-13-1989 11-09-2015 
Councilman Best   Tammy K. Johnston 04-30-2018 04-27-2006 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   Lynne V. Brooks* 04-30-2018 08-08-2011 11-09-2015 
Councilwoman Buckner  Irene Priess  04-30-2017 08-13-2001 04-25-2011 
Councilman Petralanda  Lee Fisher  04-30-2017 03-23-2015 03-23-2015   
 
Recreation Commission 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  E. Jorge Santin  04-30-2016 04-14-2008 12-13-2010 
Councilman Best   Mark A. Johnston 04-30-2018 04-22-2013 04-22-2013 
Vice Mayor Bain   Dr. Stephanie Kondy 04-30-2017 06-13-2005 09-10-2012 
Councilwoman Buckner   Miguel Becerra  04-30-2017 09-09-2015 09-09-2015 
Councilman Petralanda  Alexander Anthony 04-30-2016 08-12-2013 08-12-2013 
 
 * Architectural Review Board 
  Ecology Board - Council confirmation required per §32.40  
  Education Advisory Board - Council confirmation required per §32.99 (A) 
  Board of Parks and Parkways – Council confirmation required per §32.30  
   
  “No Board/Commission member who shall have served three consecutive terms of office shall be eligible to serve 

an additional term of office for two years thereafter, unless the appointment for any additional term shall be 
confirmed by a majority of the City Council.” 

 



City of Miami Springs 
Office of the City Attorney 

Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney 
 

 

201 Westward Drive - Miami Springs, Florida 33166 
Tel: (305) 805-5006  Fax: (305) 805-5028 

www.miamisprings-fl.gov 
 

          

MEMO  
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney  
 
DATE: January 25, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Restriction on Impervious Coverings/Surfaces in Rear Yard Areas of 

Residential Homesites 
 

 
 Both the City Planner and City Building Official have advised that the City 
Code does not presently contain a provision to restrict the installation of ground 
coverings with impervious materials in the rear yard areas of residential homesites.   
 
 While front yard areas are currently protected by the code’s “Driveway 
Ordinance Provisions” (see code Section 150-016(E)), and the rear yard is 
somewhat protected by the “Accessory Building Coverage Limitations of Fifteen 
Percent” (150-041(2)), There are no provisions which would currently prevent the 
“covering over” of the remainder of rear yard areas of residential homesites with 
impervious materials. 
 
 Obviously, without proper restrictive provisions in place, properties with 
“covered over” rear yards would have no other places to drain than onto adjacent 
private and City properties.  It is exactly these types of conditions that increase the 
potential for flooding and long standing water. 
 
 Therefore, proposed for consideration is the following City Code ordinance 
amendment which provides appropriate restrictions for the control of rear yard lot 
coverage. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/


Sec. 150-041. - R-1A district.  
 
(A)   Uses permitted. 
 (1)    Single-family dwelling. In no case shall there be more than one main 
building on a lot. 
 (2)   Accessory structures and uses incidental to the single-family dwelling 
when placed on the same lot or parcel of land and not used or operated 
commercially, including, private garages, children(s playhouses, tool sheds, and 
workshops. Accessory structures and uses such as servant(s quarters, guest 
houses, and any other type of dwelling or dwelling unit are prohibited. Accessory 
structures shall occupy not more than 15 percent of the area of the rear yard. 
Further, no more than an additional 15 percent of the “Total Rear Yard Area” may be 
covered by impervious ground level improvements such as concrete slabs or strips, 
patios, or pool decks.  Notwithstanding the permitted percentages of rear yard 
coverage, a minimum pervious area of five feet must be provided from the side and 
rear yard property lines into the rear yard area.  Additionally, up to a 10 percent 
credit towards the allowed rear yard coverage may be permitted by the use of 
approved pavers in coverage areas in accordance with the provisions of Code of 
Ordinance Section 150-016 (G)(7).Notwithstanding any other definition or provision 
contained within the Code of Ordinances to the contrary, the "total rear yard area" 
for the purposes of the calculations required for the determination of the percentage 
of rear yard occupancy shall include all areas of property on the site from the vertical 
walls of structure backward to the rear property line, regardless of whether any such 
wall is recessed behind the part of the structure from which the required rear yard 
setback is measured. Accessory structures and all constructed additions shall 
conform in design and character to that of the main building and be constructed in 
accordance with all other applicable provisions of City Ordinances. All additions 
constructed onto existing single-family residences shall conform to the minimum 
habitable space provisions set forth in the South Florida Building Code. The 
placement and location of all such accessory structures in rear yards of properties 
shall provide a separation of at least ten feet from the main building, from other 
accessory structures and from utility sheds, and shall not be located closer to the 
side yard boundary line than the required side yard setback for the main building, 
nor closer than five feet to the rear yard boundary line of the property. Each single-
family residential homesite may contain a maximum of two accessory structures, so 
long as such structures comply with the foregoing construction and location 
limitations and restrictions. Single-family residential homesites that already maintain 
a utility shed thereon may only contain one accessory structure which meets the 
construction and location limitations and restrictions previously set forth herein. 
 (3)  Signs. See Signs, § 150-030 
 



ORDINANCE NO.     – 2016 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MIAMI SPRINGS ENACTING NEW CODE OF 
ORDINANCE SECTION 11-06, COLLECTION OF 
ELECTION NOMINATION PETITION SIGNATURES; 
REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT; EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 WHEREAS, City Charter Section 3.04 does not contain any direction or instruction as to 
the proper time to begin soliciting election petition signatures; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Florida Statute Section 99.095 does contain a provision which provides 
direction and instruction as to the proper time to begin soliciting election petition signatures; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, in the last City general election, both an “ethics complaint” and a “litigation” 
were filed  challenging the City’s election process and the election of Mayor in said election; 
and,  
 
 WHEREAS, although the ethics complaint case was closed and the litigation dismissed, 
the Mayor and the City Council felt that a resolution of this open issue before the next City 
election was both proper and appropriate; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, although the City does not believe that the provisions contained within 
Florida Statute Section 99.095 have been, or are currently applicable to City Elections, it would 
be in the best interests of the City and its citizens to enact legislation that is consistent with the 
statutory procedure set forth in the statute for the soliciting and collecting of election petition 
signatures; and; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the enactment of the proposed 
ordinance will sufficiently supplement the election process language contained with Charter 
Section 3.04  without the necessity of a City-wide election, provide a procedure for the collection 
of election petition signatures that is consistent with state law, and be in the best interests of the 
City and its citizens;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MIAMI SPRINGS: 

Section 1: That the Code of Ordinances is hereby amended by the addition of 
new Code of Ordinance Section 11-06, Collection of Election Nomination Petition Signatures, as 
follows: 

Section 11.06.  Collection of Election Nomination Petition Signatures 
 
  (A)  Signatures for election nomination petitions for the positions of Mayor  
  and City Council may not be obtained until a prospective candidate has  
  complied with the following requirements. 
   (1) Open an election campaign account at a bank authorized to  
   provide banking services in the State of Florida 
   (2) File the appropriate “Appointment of Campaign Treasurer  



    and Designation of Campaign Depository” form with the City  
    Clerk, the City’s Supervisor of Elections.  
 
  (B) All nominating petition signatures collected and filed for verification  
  and candidate qualification shall only be valid for the qualifying period  
  immediately following such filings. 
 

Section 2: Repeal of Conflicting Provisions. That all Ordinances or parts of 
Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed insofar as they are in conflict. 

Section 3:  Effective Date. That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately 
upon adoption. 

PASSED ON FIRST READING this    day of   , 2016, on a motion 
made by     and seconded by     . 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING this    day of    

2016, on a motion made by     and seconded by    . 
  
 

Vice Mayor Bain       
Councilman Best       
Councilwoman Buckner      
Councilman Petralanda      
Mayor Garcia     

 
 

 
              

Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:           
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM:    
 
 
      
Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney 
 
Words -stricken through- shall be deleted.  Underscored words constitute the amendment 
proposed.  Words remaining are now in effect and remain unchanged. 



ORDINANCE NO.     – 2016 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MIAMI SPRINGS AMENDING CODE OF 
ORDINANCE SECTION 34-17, EMPLOYEE 
DISCIPLINARY ACTION; BY ADDING THERETO A 
SUPPLEMENTARY PROVISION GOVERNING THE 
CARRYING OF WEAPONS AND FIREARMS WHILE ON 
DUTY WITH THE CITY; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES 
OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT; 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs has been a staunch supporter of all acts, actions, 
and programs that prevent violence in the workplace; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, as a result of certain incidents and investigations conducted by the City’s 
administrative staff, it was discovered that the City’s ordinances regulating employee conduct 
failed to include a provision prohibiting the carrying of weapons and firearms while “on duty” with 
the City; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, all local governments have become aware that employer/employee 
disputes that occur in the private section are also susceptible to occurring in the governmental 
sector; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Administrative staff is desirous of initiating whatever proactive 
actions and activities within their jurisdiction can be initiated to prevent possible violent 
confrontations in the workplace; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interests of the City’s 
workforce and its citizens to enact legislation that is aimed at eliminating workplace violence; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MIAMI SPRINGS: 

Section 1: That Code of Ordinance Section, 34-17, Employee Disciplinary 
Action, is hereby supplemented as follows: 

Section 34-17. Employee Disciplinary Action 
 
 (A)…… 
 (B)…… 
 (C)…… 
 (D)…… 
 (E)  Types of Offenses.  The three groups of offenses and guides for standard 
recommended penalties are as follows: 
 
 Group I Offenses 
 
 Group II Offenses 
 
 Group III Offenses 



 
 (3)  First offense—Up to discharge 
  (g)  Unauthorized use or display of firearms, explosives, or weapons on 
City property; in addition, no employee, unless authorized as part of a job function, is 
permitted to have weapons or firearms, as defined in the Florida Statutes, including 
antique firearms, in their personal possession while “on duty” with the City. 

 

Section 2: Repeal of Conflicting Provisions. That all Ordinances or parts of 
Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed insofar as they are in conflict. 

Section 3:  Effective Date. That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately 
upon adoption. 

PASSED ON FIRST READING this    day of   , 2016, on a motion 
made by     and seconded by     . 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING this    day of    

2016, on a motion made by     and seconded by    . 
  
 

Vice Mayor Bain       
Councilman Best       
Councilwoman Buckner      
Councilman Petralanda      
Mayor Garcia     

 
 

 
              

Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:           
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM:    
 
 
      
Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney 
 
Words -stricken through- shall be deleted.  Underscored words constitute the amendment 
proposed.  Words remaining are now in effect and remain unchanged. 



1  

RESOLUTION NO. 2016 –  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MIAMI SPRINGS PROVIDING FOR THE SECOND BUDGET 
AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2015-2016 BUDGET;  BY 
INCREASING THE GENERAL FUND BUDGET TO RECORD 
VARIOUS TRANSFERS OF FUNDS AND THE RECEIPT OF 
GRANT FUNDING BY THE CITY;  PROVIDING INTENT; 
SPECIFYING COMPLIANCE WITH BUDGETARY 
PROCESSES AND PROCEDURES; EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
WHEREAS, the City Charter prohibits any City department from incurring expenditures 

in excess of the department’s approved budget; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Finance Director has deemed it proper and appropriate to record 

transfers of funds within the City General Fund to cover an additional Stafford Pavilion 
change order, the grant funds received for the Prince Field renovation, the purchase of a 
Toro Groundmaster for the Golf Course, the purchase of a SandPro Tractor for general City 
field maintenance, and the additional costs incurred for City Field maintenance required by 
the City Request for Proposal award; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Finance Director has also deemed it proper and appropriate to 

record the City’s receipt of grant funds from the state of Florida for canal bank restoration 
within the City; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the budget increases, recordations, 

and appropriations previously set forth herein are both proper and appropriate, in accordance 
with generally accepted municipal accounting principles, and in the best interests of the City 
and its citizens; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA: 
 
Section 1:  That the City Council of the City of Miami Springs hereby approves and 

authorizes the budgetary amendments and appropriations to the various revenues and 
expenditures of the budgets and funds set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 

 
Section 2:  That the City Council approvals and authorizations evidenced herein are 

intended to provide the City with the means to accomplish the purposes and projects identified 
in the recitals of this Resolution and the Exhibit attached hereto. 

 
Section 3:   That the City Council of the City of Miami Springs has authorized and 

approved the foregoing budgetary amendments, increases and appropriations in order to 
comply with generally accepted budgetary processes and procedures. 

Section 4:  That the provisions of this Resolution shall be effective immediately upon 
adoption by the City Council. 

 
 



  
 2 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Miami Springs, Florida, 
this   day of    , 2016, on a motion by     and seconded 
by    . 

 
Vice Mayor Bain        
Councilman Best        
Councilwoman Buckner       
Councilman Petralanda       
Mayor Garcia      
  

 
        

             
Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:           
 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM:    
 
 
 
      
Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney 

 
 



EXHIBIT "A"

City of Miami Springs
FY 2015-16 Budget Amendment

All Operating Funds

Amended Amendment Amended
Fund/Classification Budget No. 2 Ref Budget

General Fund  
Revenues

Taxes $7,103,405 $7,103,405
Excise Taxes 2,754,000               2,754,000               
Licenses & Permits 182,000                  182,000                  
Intergovernmental Revenues 2,017,494               -                               2,017,494               
Charges for Services 2,423,208               2,423,208               
Fines & Forfeitures 474,000                  474,000                  
Miscellaneous 289,419                  9,500                      1          298,919                  
Proceeds from debt -                              30,364                    3          30,364                    
Transfers from other funds 252,764                  252,764                  
Fund Balance 142,788                  $40,689 2,4,5 183,477                  

Total General Fund $15,639,078 $80,553 $15,719,631
Expenditures

City Council 150,271 150,271
City Manager 348,613 $0  348,613
City Clerk 271,252 $0  271,252
City Attorney 166,000  166,000
Human Resources 223,318  223,318
Finance-Administration 495,380 $0  495,380
Finance-Professional Services 315,788 $0  315,788
Information Technology 348,346  348,346
Planning 84,591  84,591
Police 6,383,811 0  6,383,811
Building, Zoning, and Code Enforcement 173,987 0  173,987
Public Works 1,756,537 0  1,756,537
Recreation & Culture 1,969,154 50,189  1,2,4,5 2,019,343
Golf Operations 1,725,099 30,364 3 1,755,463
Transfers to other funds 1,226,930 1,226,930
Budgeted Increase to reserves 0   0

Total General Fund 15,639,078 80,553 15,719,631

Sanitation Operations 2,539,030   2,539,030

Stormwater Operations 550,049 500,000 6 1,050,049

Total Enterprise Funds 3,089,079 $500,000 $3,589,079
Special Revenue & Capital Projects

Road & Transportation 711,701 $0  $711,701

Senior Center Operations 480,976 0  480,976

Capital Projects 4,097,181 0  4,097,181

Building Operations 718,196 718,196

Law Enforcement Trust 171,531 0  171,531
Total Special Revenue & Capital Projects Funds 6,179,585 $0 $6,179,585

    
G.O. Bonds - Series 1997 1,180,893 $1,180,893

Total Debt Service  1,180,893 $1,180,893
GRAND TOTAL ALL FUNDS $26,088,635 $580,553 $26,669,188

Legend:    
 
 1) Stafford Pavillion additional $5,558 change order approved by Council 10/12/15

2) Record $9500 grant for Price Field renovation

 3) Record $30,364 for a Toro Groundmaster for the Golf course maintenance

 4) Record $19,601 for the additional costs of the field maintenance RFP.
 

 5) Record $15,530 for the purchase of a SandPro tractor for field maintenance  

 6) To account for the $500,000 State grant for the canal bank restoration.














































































































	Agenda Summary - February 8, 2016
	Agenda Summary - p. 2

	3B CAFR Presentation by Auditors
	3B(B) Communications with those charged with governance

	3C Presentation by Lee Zell for Service Line Warranty Program 
	5A Minutes - January 25, 2016
	8A City Attorney's Invoice for January 2016
	9A Advisory Board Appointments
	9B Impervious Coverings/Surfaces in Rear Yard Areas in Residences
	10A Ordinance - Election Process
	10B Ordinance - Employee Disciplinary Action
	10C Resolution - Second Budget Amendment
	10D Resolution - LAP Agreement for ADA Sidewalks
	10E Fund Balance Designations 2016
	10F Request from Tom Curtis for Alcohol Sales for River Cities Fest
	10G Floor Area Ratio Request
	11A First Quarter Budget Report



